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 1               (Start of audio tape.)
 2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We are
 3     recording.  This is the time and place set for a hearing
 4     regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the
 5     Indefinite Stay in Development Period," signed by the
 6     Department in December 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack,
 7     Bureau Chief Water Allocation Bureau.  And it's in the
 8     matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B.
 9     Kugler, and at the time I think it listed Northwest Farm
10     Credit Services as well.
11               It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit
12     Services is no longer involved; or is that correct, Mr.
13     Kugler?
14               MR. KUGLER:  That is correct.  They should
15     have filed the fact that I paid the mortgage off back in
16     2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004.  But they have
17     filed it now, so it's in my name alone at this point in
18     time and they have no interest in the property.
19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I'm not sure we
20     have that change.
21               MR. KUGLER:  It's all there.
22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We did have
23     you sign.  So that has come in since then, this was
24     dated January 28th.
25               MR. KUGLER:  That part has been accepted now
0003
 1     by the Department.
 2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That was January
 3     28th, and I didn't look at the records, but I assume
 4     they've been changed.  So our records should reflect
 5     that this is now in the name of John B. Kugler, and the
 6     case caption will be titled an amended so that you are
 7     the sole owner of this permit shown in our records.
 8               MR. KUGLER:  Along with my wife.
 9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Oh, okay.
10               MR. KUGLER:  But I don't remember how it got
11     deeded back to me.
12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  It doesn't show
13     that in the assignment.  So I don't know how that is
14     shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way
15     it is in the permit for the Department.
16               MR. KUGLER:  That may be in my name alone.  I
17     don't recall.  Since then I've gotten the original.
18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I suspect it is.
19               MR. KUGLER:  I've got "John B. or" on the
20     original.
21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  We don't normally
22     have -- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows
23     it in Kugler's name, in John's name.
24               MR. KUGLER:  And/or Diane K., at my request.
25     I put it that way, what I faxed in, because I excluded
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 1     it in my own typing on my request for reconsideration
 2     that Northwest had no interest.  And I just raised it as
 3     an exception (inaudible).
 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  I have this
 5     request from you.  Let's see, reconsider its finding,
 6     should we go down this path I've been anticipating.
 7     Just that we normally issue something that is, other
 8     than that we've changed.
 9               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.  I think we should base
10     it completely on the assignment trail.  So the
11     assignment was just in John's name and that's as far as
12     it went.
13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  My guess is that
14     that is the way our records show because that is the way
15     the assignment is.  I was looking for something else
16     that might have changed that, and I don't see it here.
17               So anyway, that is probably something you may
18     want to address later, John, if --
19               MR. KUGLER:  I would -- you don't need to.
20     I'm making a note to myself in regard to that request of
21     time.
22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it may require
23     that you assign the permit to you and your wife.
24               MR. KUGLER:  If I do that, I will get
25     Northwest to execute another transfer document.
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 1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think Northwest
 2     has fully assigned the permit to you.
 3               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.
 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So I think at least
 5     we would recognize you as the sole owner of the permit
 6     now.  So I think it just --
 7               MR. KUGLER:  The only one that I would upset
 8     is my wife.  (Laughter.)
 9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it probably may
10     or may not be community property.  I don't know.
11               MR. KUGLER:  It definitely is community
12     property.
13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I don't know what
14     the state of Washington is.
15               MR. KUGLER:  Exactly, Washington is a
16     community property state, one of the eight.
17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  All right.  So,
18     again, we are here.  The order was issued in November of
19     2007.  And in response to service of the order upon him,
20     or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a
21     hearing.  That request for hearing was granted.
22               We conducted the prehearing conference, but we
23     met with you and talked about the facts and some of the
24     background related to this.  And then I wrote a letter
25     to you that essentially confirmed our opinion that the
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 1     order would stand, and so we went forward with the
 2     hearing, and that is why we are here today.
 3               MR. KUGLER:  I understand, yes.
 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And before we began
 5     the recording, we discussed the way in which we would
 6     proceed.  Again, this is not necessarily a contested
 7     case hearing because we don't have two parties.  The
 8     Department has issued a decision.  This is an
 9     opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the
10     Department to consider in looking at everything again.
11     And then the Department will issue ultimately a decision
12     based on the record that is provided today.
13               And I do want to mention for the record that
14     Mr. Kugler has received copies of all the documents that
15     are contained in the file.  And I have reviewed those
16     documents and will consider the documents that are
17     contained therein in ultimately writing a preliminary
18     order for this matter.
19               And I'm sure, John, you have some additional
20     documents that you want to offer today.
21               MR. KUGLER:  I did not bring any documents.
22     The order required that I provide them to you in
23     advance, so I have not brought any documents.  I would
24     like to testify in the narrative, if I may.
25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That is
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 1     permitted, and I would be willing to allow you to offer
 2     something if you have it.  So I don't see a procedural
 3     problem with that at this point.
 4               I want to acknowledge today that Jeff
 5     Peppersack is assisting me today in this hearing.  And I
 6     also want to call attention to some documents that may
 7     not be here but are referred to in the Order Continuing
 8     the Indefinite Stay in Development Period.
 9               There are a couple of documents that I think
10     are important.  Our orders issued by the Department that
11     are referred to as "moratorium orders" that were issued
12     to all water right holders.  I have at least two
13     applicants that are -- there are two applicants whose
14     filings are pending, and those are referred to.  There
15     is a May 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 1993
16     order that was issued.
17               So anyway, with that background, John, I don't
18     have anything else to add as a preliminary matter.  Do
19     you have anything you want to say before you have an
20     opportunity to testify?
21               MR. KUGLER:  No, sir.
22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, if you would
23     stand please, John, and raise your right-hand.
24   
25     ///
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 1                           JOHN B. KUGLER,
 2     first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said
 3     cause, testified as follows:
 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please
 5     be seated.
 6               As we discussed before, you may narrate your
 7     testimony and we'll see where we go from there.
 8               MR. KUGLER:  Thank you, Mr. Spackman.
 9               This particular property came to me as a part
10     of a particular problem in the development of doing an
11     estate for a person because it was owned prior to my
12     acquisition by about 13 different heirs, and the farmer
13     who had been farming the particular property did not
14     want to buy it at its appraised value.
15               And so when one or two of the heirs insisted
16     that they would like to get their value out of it
17     percentage-wise, I spoke with the majority heir that was
18     involved, one of them had over a third interest of it,
19     and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any
20     particular time -- but I felt it ought to always go for
21     at least the appraised value and I would buy the odd
22     share so that she didn't have a particular problem in
23     covering on it.  She could acquire it from me if she
24     wished.  And that was done and that is what started it.
25               And a couple years -- within that particular
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 1     first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,
 2     no, it was late '70s, she decided that she wanted to
 3     sell hers as well.  And at that point in time I acquired
 4     all of the property and took out a loan from Farm Credit
 5     Services for the purchase price that I needed to come up
 6     with to acquire the land.
 7               That farm was being farmed at the time the
 8     heir died by one farmer.  And when she decided to sell,
 9     he decided he no longer wanted to farm the land.  And I
10     found another farmer who would rent the property and
11     produce a little bit of funds, as far as income to the
12     property was concerned.  That was a man by the name of
13     Melvin Funk.
14               Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own
15     particular financial problems, and in 1983 he told me he
16     could no longer and would no longer attempt to farm the
17     land, by reason of the fact that it was not very
18     productive.  He was getting very low yields.  Even when
19     he was farming it, he would be lucky to get 15 to 18
20     bushels of wheat off of the ground.  As a result, he was
21     taking a good share of that.
22               I decided that I would, because I had the loan
23     almost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give me
24     a loan for development, I put in for the purpose of
25     developing the water in 1984, and the application was
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 1     filed.
 2               At that same time when I was looking for a
 3     well driller, I found a driller, a young man who had
 4     been drilling, working for somebody else for quite a
 5     while.  And he indicated that he would go ahead and
 6     drill for me if I would buy the drilling rig, and he
 7     would pay me for any money back, but if I would pay him
 8     a particular rate for his time involved in the drilling.
 9               I bought a drill rig that was found and
10     located for $12,000.  And then we discovered that the
11     bits that came with it were insufficient, so I went out
12     and purchased a little larger bit, drill bit as
13     required, so we would have a 16-inch hole, and that cost
14     me an additional $1,600, and then I had some
15     miscellaneous expenses.  So I was into that at about
16     13.5.
17               And at that point in time, in 1984, I didn't
18     have to have a drilling permit, nor did he.  But the
19     young man then decided that he wanted to do something
20     else and was not interested in drilling.  I then found
21     another individual who was an established well driller
22     who said he would drill it and take it over if I would
23     give him the drill at the end of the period when he
24     finished.  I indicated to him that I would do so.
25              However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to
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 1     doing it.  And, of course, in 1987 one was then required
 2     to get a drilling permit before one could proceed with
 3     that stage of the development.
 4               As a result of him not getting it done, I put
 5     the land into CRP in 1986, because I was getting no
 6     yield and nothing from the ground, and it was developing
 7     into some weed problems out there that was a concern to
 8     both me and to Power County weed control people.
 9               So I put it in there and took care of the
10     weeds and put it into the CRP program.  In the meantime,
11     I discovered that that particular well driller had not
12     only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but
13     he had actually stolen the well drilling machine and
14     sold it.  So he was unable to even go forward with it.
15               I found another driller in 1990 who indicated
16     that he would go ahead, contacted the power company to
17     see about them running a line out to that particular
18     farm area, which is located in the western part of Power
19     County and close to the lava rocks, and he was now going
20     to begin.
21               And Idaho Power Company told me that at that
22     point in time they required a two- or three-year
23     planning stage before they could even consider extending
24     it.  So when I talked with the well driller about that,
25     he withdrew his willingness to go forward.
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 1               This continued through this particular period.
 2     And, of course, I did receive the order indicating in
 3     1992, I believe it was, I think it was the April 30 --
 4     May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well
 5     drilling permit in going forward and was advised at that
 6     time about its expiration in 1997, as far as some of
 7     that was concerned.
 8               Anyway, it continued in the CRP program
 9     through that period of time.  And when I got a notice
10     about trying to put in the proof of completion and
11     development, I was unable to do so because I couldn't
12     get a well drilled and I couldn't put any water on the
13     land because of the CRP.  The ground remained again and
14     was put into CRP in 19 -- actually in 1996.  The
15     Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on
16     their own and then sought new applications in 1997,
17     which they extended then for a ten-year period expiring
18     in 2007.
19               At one point during that period of time I
20     filed my own application for extension of time for
21     completion of work and asked that it be extended through
22     2006, because that was my recollection of when the
23     current contract had been excluded, and then determined
24     afterwards that it came out to 2007.
25               But as I recall, the Department only granted
0013
 1     me to 2004.  And that particular determination, when I
 2     put in for that permit, I didn't go through the
 3     Department of Water Resources, because when I had given
 4     them the financing agreement to begin with, it was only
 5     going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to
 6     be renewed, and I had never renewed it with them.
 7               Of course, even after that, in 1994, I never
 8     did receive the order direct from -- the first one on
 9     February 4 from the Department, but Farm Credit sent it
10     to me and that is when I put in an application as to
11     that period of time.
12               But the farm has been in CRP continuously.
13     Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons
14     that I indicated early to begin with, until 2007.  And
15     before it got through to 2007, and early 2007, they
16     extended it for two more years, through 2009.
17               As of this date that extension order which
18     existed, will not be reconsidered.  It didn't require
19     anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay
20     them a small fee for a redetermination of acreage, which
21     had some new aerial photos.  But they wanted to do that
22     through that period of time, and I think that had to do
23     with something with county allotments.
24               But at the present time the county allotment
25     is going to be reduced, I gather, and they will not
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 1     renew it.  So come October of 2007 -- or 2009, this
 2     year, I will then be able to alleviate the problem with
 3     being able to consider the development and complete
 4     development of the acreage as I now require.
 5               The order that was issued, of course, in
 6     granting the extension through 2007, in effect,
 7     precludes me from drilling.  And obviously I cannot put
 8     water on, although I have been given oral permission by
 9     the County Department of Agriculture representative to
10     put a well in at any time so that I can start to
11     develop.
12               I will not be able to put any water in, as
13     indicated, until after October 1 of 2007.  But at that
14     time I did find the prohibition against putting a well
15     on the premises, as long as I don't put extensions and
16     lines in for watering has been alleviated.
17               Obviously when the other alleviation comes,
18     then my only particular problem that I have, as far as
19     being able to supply the completion of works, which the
20     Department has been extending for quite some time, will
21     be the problem of getting the permission of drilling a
22     well, which did not exist at the time the permit was
23     granted, but does now I guess exist, because I've been
24     told recently, since December 17 -- or December 17th
25     of -- or 21st, I guess, of this 2008, sometime during
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 1     2008, that if I requested a well drilling permit, it
 2     would not be issued.  I presumed that that is based on
 3     what I gather is being called the "ESPA moratorium."
 4               I believe with respect to that, that that ESPA
 5     moratorium came into effect after the granting of this
 6     permit, wherein I was permitted to drill a well without
 7     acquiring a well drilling permit.  I also believe that
 8     the moratorium basically operated as an interference
 9     with an existing right, which I think was precluded by
10     Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code.
11               If I gather from the findings, it has been
12     determined by the Department that the consumption that I
13     requested for is insignificant.
14               MR. PEPPERSACK:  John, what is the code
15     section again that you referred to?
16               MR. KUGLER:  42-1374(F).  That was a basic one
17     in the original powers of the Department.  I don't have
18     access to and could not get access to any supplements or
19     anything else as far as that code section is concerned.
20     So I don't know --
21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I have a code book
22     here and I don't find that.  I don't find a section that
23     is numbered that high.
24               MR. KUGLER:  Well, that was in on old book of
25     mine, and I suspect it was deleted when they adopted the
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 1     new code section.  As I said, I didn't have access to
 2     the Idaho Code.
 3               I would have to go back and -- whenever the
 4     new section was involved.  I do understand from -- I
 5     talked with somebody else that had been involved with
 6     waters that there was another statute adopted at one
 7     time that had to do with preservation of rights.  And I
 8     don't know what that code section is because of my lack
 9     of being able to access any authority on it.
10               It had to do with, as I understand, including
11     probably some sort of non-consumptive use, CRP type,
12     which is what I was precluded from during this period of
13     time, and other things in that regard, and I'm not sure
14     what they are.
15               I had planned to try to get to Pocatello prior
16     to this hearing, and some other developments in my own
17     personal situation precluded that between the time the
18     order came out and this particular setting, so I was not
19     able to do that, as I said.
20               My computer just -- my wife's computer will
21     not access whatever it takes to get into the law library
22     and the Tacoma (inaudible.)  Pierce County library
23     doesn't have anything --
24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There are two, I
25     think, references to set-aside programs in the code, and
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 1     one of those is related to whether the right can be
 2     forfeited while it's in a set-aside program.  And the
 3     code says that a water right cannot be forfeited.  Of
 4     course, this is a permit, so I don't think that
 5     forfeiture is a legal theory that would apply to a
 6     permit.
 7               The other provision of law is that extensions
 8     of time can be granted during the tenancy of that
 9     enrollment in a federal set-aside program, so that the
10     permit is somehow not lost because of failure of ability
11     to submit the proof of beneficial use during the
12     development period.
13               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I appreciate that
14     explanation, and I was suspecting that probably there
15     was something like that, that is why I wanted to do the
16     research and I was unable to do so.  I do think,
17     however, that the permit itself, as it existed at the
18     time when the drilling permit was not considered or
19     whatever and which continues under its provisions, does
20     constitute a water right of a nature.
21               Sure, it's not been developed, true, but at
22     the same time I was not in a legal position.  I was
23     precluded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a
24     complete development.  And to me that is sort of an
25     inconsistency, that is, when I'm going ahead with
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 1     inconsistency, as far as saying, Hey, you have got to
 2     develop this, when I can't get a well permit, a drilling
 3     permit to proceed by reason of the adoption of the
 4     moratorium code.
 5               And that inconsistency to me is what I have
 6     been trying to do in the meantime.  I have always wanted
 7     to develop it, but at the same time I couldn't let the
 8     land just sit there and go to weeds.  I had to do
 9     something about it.  And putting it into grasses was a
10     benefit to everyone.  It produces a little bit of
11     revenue for me and at the same time produced a benefit
12     to the general public, as far as providing some very
13     good area for grouse and other wildlife.
14               Personally, actually in looking at the grass
15     that was given to me -- and I know we talked about this
16     at the informal conference at one time as to whether
17     this particular ground actually lies within that Blue
18     Lakes groundwater curtailment area or not.  And
19     physically I can't tell from the map because I know how
20     far that particular boundary is marked on the map, and
21     we discussed the fact that it's not a good marking
22     described.
23               I don't know what the description is when it
24     was described because I haven't acquired actually any
25     reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line
0019
 1     or whatever it is exists at that particular point.
 2               I know that my land is located in the
 3     southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31
 4     in Township 6 (inaudible) Range 31 east, and that is it.
 5     But regardless, it's close, there is no question about
 6     it.
 7               But I still think that -- and that is why I'm
 8     talking about mitigation and continues conditions,
 9     because the one condition that needs to be alleviated in
10     this particular order, now that the ownership question
11     has been started, is what is required to be able to
12     allow me to hire a driller so that I can put the land
13     into cultivation as was contemplated at the time and
14     would have been done had I not had the one well driller
15     quit on me after I had acquired the (inaudible) to
16     proceed, and then the other guy commit a fraud against
17     me with respect to it before getting that done.  And so
18     that is all that I could do in the meantime, and that I
19     guess is exactly where I am.
20               I believe that when this land goes back, I
21     don't know whether there is a farmer who is interested
22     in trying to put this very small tract of land into dry
23     farm again in the lava rocks where it exists, because
24     there are some good piles of rock in there that are
25     within a few inches of the surface.  It's very marginal
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 1     land, but it was borderline marginal.  And so when the
 2     County had to pick it out, this is one they took off of
 3     the program.
 4               At the same time as I financed, the big
 5     finance on what was in existence at the time that I
 6     signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the
 7     acquisition of another farm that I have, which was
 8     basically my retirement from what little monies I had.
 9               I also came out of a litigation, a litigation
10     which I was not involved, but when some parties got a
11     judgment on a farm that is located on the Power County
12     and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within
13     Power County, and that was in existence.
14               And in order to acquire I had to put this
15     particular farm up with my water right on it to
16     sufficiently finance the acquisition of that land.  And
17     I did have a farmer engaged in partnership on it, and he
18     ran into his financial problems and had to back out and
19     I had to buy him out of that one as well.
20               So in the meantime I finally paid off Farm
21     Credit, as I said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but I kind of
22     paid off on both farms at that point in time.  And I'm
23     now looking at what I can do to find something to do
24     with this particular farm there, this small farm in
25     Pleasant Valley.
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 1               And I think that hopefully these type of
 2     things do fall within the provisions of what the
 3     Department operates under, as far as alleviating the
 4     conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as I
 5     said, as of October 1, 2007.
 6               That is why when I put in the request
 7     originally, I thought I could get it in within one year,
 8     knowing that I still have to get an extension of power
 9     to reach that particular ground.  It's about a quarter
10     of a mile of extension of line.  Not knowing what Idaho
11     Power's current situation is, I thought maybe I should
12     figure on a three-year plan.
13               The rules still provide, of course, that you
14     try to get started within what first year, and that is
15     what I would like to do, even if it took a little longer
16     to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm
17     itself.  That is where I am.
18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.
19               MR. KUGLER:  If there are any questions, I am
20     certainly glad to answer them, as far as some of the
21     specifics, or if you need further documentation.  I
22     agree with you that, why on a couple of times Mr. Hill
23     proceeded with where he did and then didn't.
24     (Inaudible) the other, I don't know.
25               But they would change their offices from
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 1     Blackfoot, where I normally was doing things, to Idaho
 2     Falls, and I didn't get to see him very often during
 3     that time, but he didn't come down to see me either
 4     because I was making my payments.
 5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  John, there is some
 6     questions that, I guess, I have, and they have to do
 7     more with the basis for your challenge and the legal
 8     grounds that you may argue are the basis for the
 9     Department allowing you to go forward.
10               So I guess I would like to go back through the
11     information that we have, and try to pinpoint and
12     identify the times and where you think the Department
13     has done something that it's either not authorized to do
14     or that at some juncture the Department should let go of
15     where we are at.
16               So, as I see this record, the permit was
17     issued to you in July -- on July 27, 1990.
18               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, even though I had put the
19     permit in in 1984, during that period of time -- well,
20     it didn't appear here -- there was some communications
21     about the first well driller.  He didn't get his work
22     done when that got off, that was communicated to the
23     Department, and there was no letter in here reflecting
24     that, even a notation of the conversation that I had
25     with the Department, they were made aware of it.  And I
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 1     was told -- and I think that is contained in a
 2     application that I was told not to be concerned with
 3     because they weren't doing any processing by reason of
 4     the water hearings.  And at that particular time they
 5     were not doing any processing of permits to actually go
 6     ahead and issue them in '84, '85.
 7                But, of course, as I said at that time had I
 8     not had my problems in that aspect, I would have them
 9     all and we wouldn't be here where we are today.  That is
10     what I'm talking about mitigation in that particular
11     regard.
12               I do think that I had in 1990 when I was
13     right, the right to get a well permit.  I think that was
14     an existing right at that time.  But that existing right
15     I think was then taken away from me when I caught
16     mention of the statutes.  That is the way I feel about
17     how that interpetation should be.
18               And when the limitation came in and it said:
19     Fine, this is going to expire in 1997, I didn't think
20     about it because 1997 was when my contract was up on the
21     CRP contract.  And so at that time I thought:  Fine, I
22     can just go ahead.  And then at one point thereafter I
23     didn't get ahold of the orders that Mr. Hill proceeded,
24     I wasn't involved, and that is why we had that mixup
25     about ownership that I didn't think was going to be
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 1     filed, was not aware of it until we got into these
 2     proceedings where we are today.  I guess basically that
 3     is about the best I can do at this point in time.
 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, we could go
 5     back and probably recreate a record of why the
 6     application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.
 7     And I suspect that that documentation probably would
 8     show that there were orders and restrictions that were
 9     put in place for the processing of the applications,
10     would fall within what was called trust water area, and
11     there was an ongoing lawsuit with Idaho Power and the
12     Swan Falls agreement that was signed.
13               MR. KUGLER:  I never had any notice of any of
14     those proceedings or any information to that regard.  I
15     went through my old file, because I did have the old
16     file with my old permit, and there was nothing in there
17     to that extent.
18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I don't find
19     any of that here, except I did find some correspondence
20     from Tim Luke in the, I think, early 1990s.
21               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  There was some
22     correspondence from him when he sent me a copy of the
23     '93 order or '92, as I remember it.  I would have to go
24     back and look.
25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There shouldn't be
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 1     -- this is '94, 1990, so --
 2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.
 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  During the Swan
 4     Falls litigation, Department approval may have been
 5     delayed.  The Department is presently reviewing your
 6     application.
 7               MR. KUGLER:  I do have that letter.
 8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And that is the
 9     first indication, at least looking at this, so I think
10     what I would want to do is start with the date the
11     permit was issued, because it was issued, it had a first
12     priority date of October 4, 1984, which would be the
13     date of filing.  And so that below, other than perhaps
14     now in retrospect looking back on it, if you had hurried
15     to develop -- I'm not sure you could have.  It probably
16     was held up by Swan Falls anyway.
17               So this was issued, and then following the
18     issuance of that the Department issued an order in 1994,
19     subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed
20     the development under this permit.
21               MR. KUGLER:  Correct.
22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Now, you contest
23     that particular order; is that correct?
24               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  I don't think -- because
25     that stay, in effect, says you have to have a well
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 1     drilling permit, which my permit did not require at the
 2     time -- well, it did have, but it says that my permit
 3     said I could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that time
 4     it was granted in '84.
 5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.
 6               MR. KUGLER:  But yes, I know they changed that
 7     and put the well drillers into a filing, not being able
 8     to do any work, but they adopted the well driller code
 9     in '87.  But I think that the effect of that -- and
10     that's, again, I honestly believe, I don't know from a
11     legal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or
12     anything during this whole entire period of time and not
13     having had any of the notices because of that very
14     complicated hearing, I know there were a lot other
15     people who did get notices from the Department, but I
16     didn't, so I didn't know where I stood as far as that
17     goes.
18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I do want to
19     refer you to Idaho Code Section 42-1805, and this is
20     subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805.  And this is a code
21     section that is titled "Additional Duties" and describes
22     some of the duties that have been delegated by the
23     legislature to the director of the Department of Water
24     Resources.
25               It says:  "The director shall have the
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 1     following powers and duties in subparagraph 7."  It
 2     says:  "After notice to suspend the issuance where
 3     further action on permits or applications that is
 4     necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to
 5     ensure compliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42
 6     Idaho Code."
 7               So at least here in this code section it
 8     grants the director the authority to stop the
 9     development under permits that had been issued to
10     people.
11               MR. KUGLER:  When was that adopted, if I may
12     ask?
13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I would have
14     to go back through --
15               MR. KUGLER:  It should show at the bottom of
16     the page, I think.
17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Yeah.  I
18     don't know -- I don't know how many amendments have been
19     produced.  There are several here.
20               Why don't I just show you.  You could look
21     through those annotations or the history right at the
22     bottom and there are several amendments.  So I don't
23     know whether that was added and when.  We could go back
24     through, I guess, the section once and it's possible.
25     We could get you a copy of that if you want, John.
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 1               MR. KUGLER:  That's all right.  I do intend to
 2     figure out somehow how I can get into it, but --
 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Certainly the
 4     Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have a vehicle
 5     here with you today.
 6               MR. KUGLER:  No, I do not, or I would have
 7     gone over.  I have to get back right away.  Let's not
 8     take any more time with the hearing now and I'll just
 9     look at this after we are through, if I may.
10               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, that is fine.
11               MR. KUGLER:  If you have another question I
12     can --
13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.  I guess
14     beyond that then, the order was issued in 2005.  And
15     then you received a notice that proof was due, and we
16     issued an extension of time when you requested it.  And
17     by my reading, that extension extended the time for
18     proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order.  That
19     is the way I read this, because the 2005 order -- let me
20     look back.  I was looking in the wrong place.
21               By the way, this order actually quotes at the
22     time it was issued in 1995, Section 43-1805,
23     subparagraph 7.  So it apparently was in place at the
24     time this order was issued.
25               But this order said at the -- this is 1994,
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 1     I'm sorry.  I meant to look at the 1995 order.
 2               The order that I'm referring to is an April
 3     4th -- is dated April 4th, 1995.  And the last condition
 4     under the order portion of the document states:  "This
 5     order does not grant a stay in development beyond
 6     December 31st, 1997."  Now, that language could be
 7     interpreted a couple of ways.  One way I guess it could
 8     be interpreted is that the stay in development is -- or
 9     the stay is finished and that the period of time for
10     development starts to run again.
11               MR. KUGLER:  That is what I thought it meant,
12     because when it talked about well drilling expiring in
13     '97, in fact, I thought by 1997 I could put into it,
14     then I found out I couldn't.
15               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, the request
16     for extension of time we approved also said proof of
17     beneficial use needed to be submitted by December 31st,
18     1997.  Now, usually that setup, I guess, is a physical
19     impossibility because a stay was in place, and this is
20     the inconsistency, but we required the filing of proof
21     which couldn't be because there was a stay.
22               MR. KUGLER:  And still cannot.
23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And you had a CRP
24     contract (inaudible).
25               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.
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 1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So then there was a
 2     second request for an extension of time that you filed.
 3     And this actually was filed, I think it's signed by
 4     Richard Hill.
 5               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.  He filed one in
 6     December, and I filed a different one separately myself,
 7     and I can't remember when I got it filed.  I filed one
 8     on my own, and I didn't see a copy of that, as I recall,
 9     in the papers I received.  I filed one, paid a $50 fee
10     asking to go till 2006, and there is a letter in there
11     telling me it was approved for the end of 2004, and I
12     had requested to 2006.  And I didn't see that in that
13     particular file.  Maybe it's me, because there was so
14     much paper to go through trying to figure out in the
15     copying process what fit where.
16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  So what I
17     have at least, and I'll try to reconcile those dates,
18     but what I have is, I have an extension of time that was
19     approved until December 31st, 1997.  Then I have another
20     one that extended the time for development for another
21     five years, and this was based on the CRP enrollment,
22     until, December 1, 2002.  And then I have another one
23     that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the
24     time for proof of beneficial use until December 1, 2007.
25               MR. KUGLER:  There is one other one that Mr.
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 1     Hill filed.
 2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, it was
 3     jointly filed.
 4               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.
 5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:   So there is a dual
 6     signature on this one.
 7               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah, I remember he contacted me
 8     at some point in time during that period of time, even
 9     though I didn't have much remitting on my contract
10     there.
11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But this extended
12     the date for submittal of proof until December 1, 2007.
13     At that point in time you filed another request for
14     extension of time, and that is what prompted the
15     December 6, 2007 order from those signed by Jeff.
16               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.  I think there is a letter
17     in there that shows that when I was concerned about the
18     2007, which was the then end of my CRP contract.  I
19     originally had thought it was 2006 when I put in one
20     request.
21               But anyway, I stopped in in September of 2000
22     and was unable to get -- because the computers weren't
23     working that day that I was in there.  Talking with the
24     one lady, and then they sent me the information that
25     said:  Here this is what you need to do with the
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 1     extension request, which I filled out at that particular
 2     point in time, yes.
 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So you are not
 4     contesting the issuance of these extensions of time.
 5               MR. KUGLER:  No, not at all.
 6               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  They are documents
 7     that extend the permit --
 8               MR. KUGLER:  Just how it affects me, and that
 9     is the inconsistency that I talked about between, Hey,
10     there is no way I could ever comply with that until I am
11     able to drill a well and put the water on it.
12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So are you
13     contesting the ability of the Department now to issue
14     another order continuing the indefinite stay in the
15     development period?
16               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, because at this particular
17     point in time I can alleviate it, and that precludes me
18     from being able to drill a well and convert it to what
19     it was originally intended.
20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.  All right.
21     Well, I understand the arguments.  And I don't know that
22     we need to go over anything else.  Is there anything
23     that else that you want to discuss with us?
24               MR. KUGLER:  No.  That concludes what I have
25     and what I know at this particular point in time.  I do
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 1     appreciate the chance to let me look at your code
 2     sections here for a few minutes.
 3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.
 4               Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at
 5     this point?
 6               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.
 7               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  All right.
 8     Thank you.
 9               MR. KUGLER:  I just hope I've come up with the
10     showing that conditions will be alleviated as is set
11     forth, as against what is in -- and do that which I have
12     not been able to do.  And that this insignificant
13     consumption aspect is material to you and that you are
14     able to find something from a mitigation standpoint as a
15     result of my particular problems in this particular
16     relevant time.
17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And the
18     current period of CRP enrollment expires when?
19               MR. KUGLER:  September 30th, 2009.
20               On October 1 I can start to put water in, and
21     I have been given permission to drill a well on it.
22     That is only oral, I don't have it in writing, from the
23     Department with the Power County agent.
24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  You say by the
25     Department, you are talking about someone from Power
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 1     County.
 2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  The Department of
 3     Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.
 4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.
 5               MR. KUGLER:  He has authorized me, to say you
 6     can put a well on it, but you cannot develop, further
 7     development at this time.
 8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So he says you can
 9     put a well on when?
10               MR. KUGLER:  Now.  I can put one on tomorrow.
11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That doesn't
12     violate the terms of the CRP.
13               MR. KUGLER:  He says it will not violate the
14     terms in this last year of concern.  He said, You can't
15     put water on it because that would be a violation.
16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Very good.
17     Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,
18     nice to see you again.
19               MR. KUGLER:  Tell Debby thank you for
20     arranging to have that proceeding right here.  I didn't
21     even know it existed, and to accommodate me as far as
22     time so I can get down and back in a day.
23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Very good.
24     Okay.  We'll close the record.  Thanks.
25               (End of audio tape.)
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· · · · · · · ·(Start of audio tape.)·1·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··We are·2·


· · ·recording.··This is the time and place set for a hearing·3·


· · ·regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the·4·


· · ·Indefinite Stay in Development Period," signed by the·5·


· · ·Department in December 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack,·6·


· · ·Bureau Chief Water Allocation Bureau.··And it's in the·7·


· · ·matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B.·8·


· · ·Kugler, and at the time I think it listed Northwest Farm·9·


· · ·Credit Services as well.10·


· · · · · · · ·It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit11·


· · ·Services is no longer involved; or is that correct, Mr.12·


· · ·Kugler?13·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That is correct.··They should14·


· · ·have filed the fact that I paid the mortgage off back in15·


· · ·2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004.··But they have16·


· · ·filed it now, so it's in my name alone at this point in17·


· · ·time and they have no interest in the property.18·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I'm not sure we19·


· · ·have that change.20·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··It's all there.21·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··We did have22·


· · ·you sign.··So that has come in since then, this was23·


· · ·dated January 28th.24·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That part has been accepted now25·
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· · ·by the Department.·1·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··That was January·2·


· · ·28th, and I didn't look at the records, but I assume·3·


· · ·they've been changed.··So our records should reflect·4·


· · ·that this is now in the name of John B. Kugler, and the·5·


· · ·case caption will be titled an amended so that you are·6·


· · ·the sole owner of this permit shown in our records.·7·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Along with my wife.·8·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Oh, okay.·9·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··But I don't remember how it got10·


· · ·deeded back to me.11·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··It doesn't show12·


· · ·that in the assignment.··So I don't know how that is13·


· · ·shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way14·


· · ·it is in the permit for the Department.15·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That may be in my name alone.··I16·


· · ·don't recall.··Since then I've gotten the original.17·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I suspect it is.18·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I've got "John B. or" on the19·


· · ·original.20·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··We don't normally21·


· · ·have -- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows22·


· · ·it in Kugler's name, in John's name.23·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··And/or Diane K., at my request.24·


· · ·I put it that way, what I faxed in, because I excluded25·
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· · ·it in my own typing on my request for reconsideration·1·


· · ·that Northwest had no interest.··And I just raised it as·2·


· · ·an exception (inaudible).·3·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··I have this·4·


· · ·request from you.··Let's see, reconsider its finding,·5·


· · ·should we go down this path I've been anticipating.·6·


· · ·Just that we normally issue something that is, other·7·


· · ·than that we've changed.·8·


· · · · · · · ·MR. PEPPERSACK:··No.··I think we should base·9·


· · ·it completely on the assignment trail.··So the10·


· · ·assignment was just in John's name and that's as far as11·


· · ·it went.12·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··My guess is that13·


· · ·that is the way our records show because that is the way14·


· · ·the assignment is.··I was looking for something else15·


· · ·that might have changed that, and I don't see it here.16·


· · · · · · · ·So anyway, that is probably something you may17·


· · ·want to address later, John, if --18·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I would -- you don't need to.19·


· · ·I'm making a note to myself in regard to that request of20·


· · ·time.21·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And it may require22·


· · ·that you assign the permit to you and your wife.23·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··If I do that, I will get24·


· · ·Northwest to execute another transfer document.25·


Page 5


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I think Northwest·1·


· · ·has fully assigned the permit to you.·2·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Okay.·3·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So I think at least·4·


· · ·we would recognize you as the sole owner of the permit·5·


· · ·now.··So I think it just --·6·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··The only one that I would upset·7·


· · ·is my wife.··(Laughter.)·8·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And it probably may·9·


· · ·or may not be community property.··I don't know.10·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··It definitely is community11·


· · ·property.12·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I don't know what13·


· · ·the state of Washington is.14·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Exactly, Washington is a15·


· · ·community property state, one of the eight.16·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··All right.··So,17·


· · ·again, we are here.··The order was issued in November of18·


· · ·2007.··And in response to service of the order upon him,19·


· · ·or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a20·


· · ·hearing.··That request for hearing was granted.21·


· · · · · · · ·We conducted the prehearing conference, but we22·


· · ·met with you and talked about the facts and some of the23·


· · ·background related to this.··And then I wrote a letter24·


· · ·to you that essentially confirmed our opinion that the25·
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· · ·order would stand, and so we went forward with the·1·


· · ·hearing, and that is why we are here today.·2·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I understand, yes.·3·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And before we began·4·


· · ·the recording, we discussed the way in which we would·5·


· · ·proceed.··Again, this is not necessarily a contested·6·


· · ·case hearing because we don't have two parties.··The·7·


· · ·Department has issued a decision.··This is an·8·


· · ·opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the·9·


· · ·Department to consider in looking at everything again.10·


· · ·And then the Department will issue ultimately a decision11·


· · ·based on the record that is provided today.12·


· · · · · · · ·And I do want to mention for the record that13·


· · ·Mr. Kugler has received copies of all the documents that14·


· · ·are contained in the file.··And I have reviewed those15·


· · ·documents and will consider the documents that are16·


· · ·contained therein in ultimately writing a preliminary17·


· · ·order for this matter.18·


· · · · · · · ·And I'm sure, John, you have some additional19·


· · ·documents that you want to offer today.20·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I did not bring any documents.21·


· · ·The order required that I provide them to you in22·


· · ·advance, so I have not brought any documents.··I would23·


· · ·like to testify in the narrative, if I may.24·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··That is25·
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· · ·permitted, and I would be willing to allow you to offer·1·


· · ·something if you have it.··So I don't see a procedural·2·


· · ·problem with that at this point.·3·


· · · · · · · ·I want to acknowledge today that Jeff·4·


· · ·Peppersack is assisting me today in this hearing.··And I·5·


· · ·also want to call attention to some documents that may·6·


· · ·not be here but are referred to in the Order Continuing·7·


· · ·the Indefinite Stay in Development Period.·8·


· · · · · · · ·There are a couple of documents that I think·9·


· · ·are important.··Our orders issued by the Department that10·


· · ·are referred to as "moratorium orders" that were issued11·


· · ·to all water right holders.··I have at least two12·


· · ·applicants that are -- there are two applicants whose13·


· · ·filings are pending, and those are referred to.··There14·


· · ·is a May 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 199315·


· · ·order that was issued.16·


· · · · · · · ·So anyway, with that background, John, I don't17·


· · ·have anything else to add as a preliminary matter.··Do18·


· · ·you have anything you want to say before you have an19·


· · ·opportunity to testify?20·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No, sir.21·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, if you would22·


· · ·stand please, John, and raise your right-hand.23·


· ·24·


· · ·///25·
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· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·JOHN B. KUGLER,·1·


· · ·first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said·2·


· · ·cause, testified as follows:·3·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Thank you.··Please·4·


· · ·be seated.·5·


· · · · · · · ·As we discussed before, you may narrate your·6·


· · ·testimony and we'll see where we go from there.·7·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Thank you, Mr. Spackman.·8·


· · · · · · · ·This particular property came to me as a part·9·


· · ·of a particular problem in the development of doing an10·


· · ·estate for a person because it was owned prior to my11·


· · ·acquisition by about 13 different heirs, and the farmer12·


· · ·who had been farming the particular property did not13·


· · ·want to buy it at its appraised value.14·


· · · · · · · ·And so when one or two of the heirs insisted15·


· · ·that they would like to get their value out of it16·


· · ·percentage-wise, I spoke with the majority heir that was17·


· · ·involved, one of them had over a third interest of it,18·


· · ·and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any19·


· · ·particular time -- but I felt it ought to always go for20·


· · ·at least the appraised value and I would buy the odd21·


· · ·share so that she didn't have a particular problem in22·


· · ·covering on it.··She could acquire it from me if she23·


· · ·wished.··And that was done and that is what started it.24·


· · · · · · · ·And a couple years -- within that particular25·
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· · ·first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,·1·


· · ·no, it was late '70s, she decided that she wanted to·2·


· · ·sell hers as well.··And at that point in time I acquired·3·


· · ·all of the property and took out a loan from Farm Credit·4·


· · ·Services for the purchase price that I needed to come up·5·


· · ·with to acquire the land.·6·


· · · · · · · ·That farm was being farmed at the time the·7·


· · ·heir died by one farmer.··And when she decided to sell,·8·


· · ·he decided he no longer wanted to farm the land.··And I·9·


· · ·found another farmer who would rent the property and10·


· · ·produce a little bit of funds, as far as income to the11·


· · ·property was concerned.··That was a man by the name of12·


· · ·Melvin Funk.13·


· · · · · · · ·Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own14·


· · ·particular financial problems, and in 1983 he told me he15·


· · ·could no longer and would no longer attempt to farm the16·


· · ·land, by reason of the fact that it was not very17·


· · ·productive.··He was getting very low yields.··Even when18·


· · ·he was farming it, he would be lucky to get 15 to 1819·


· · ·bushels of wheat off of the ground.··As a result, he was20·


· · ·taking a good share of that.21·


· · · · · · · ·I decided that I would, because I had the loan22·


· · ·almost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give me23·


· · ·a loan for development, I put in for the purpose of24·


· · ·developing the water in 1984, and the application was25·
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· · ·filed.·1·


· · · · · · · ·At that same time when I was looking for a·2·


· · ·well driller, I found a driller, a young man who had·3·


· · ·been drilling, working for somebody else for quite a·4·


· · ·while.··And he indicated that he would go ahead and·5·


· · ·drill for me if I would buy the drilling rig, and he·6·


· · ·would pay me for any money back, but if I would pay him·7·


· · ·a particular rate for his time involved in the drilling.·8·


· · · · · · · ·I bought a drill rig that was found and·9·


· · ·located for $12,000.··And then we discovered that the10·


· · ·bits that came with it were insufficient, so I went out11·


· · ·and purchased a little larger bit, drill bit as12·


· · ·required, so we would have a 16-inch hole, and that cost13·


· · ·me an additional $1,600, and then I had some14·


· · ·miscellaneous expenses.··So I was into that at about15·


· · ·13.5.16·


· · · · · · · ·And at that point in time, in 1984, I didn't17·


· · ·have to have a drilling permit, nor did he.··But the18·


· · ·young man then decided that he wanted to do something19·


· · ·else and was not interested in drilling.··I then found20·


· · ·another individual who was an established well driller21·


· · ·who said he would drill it and take it over if I would22·


· · ·give him the drill at the end of the period when he23·


· · ·finished.··I indicated to him that I would do so.24·


· · · · · · ··However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to25·
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· · ·doing it.··And, of course, in 1987 one was then required·1·


· · ·to get a drilling permit before one could proceed with·2·


· · ·that stage of the development.·3·


· · · · · · · ·As a result of him not getting it done, I put·4·


· · ·the land into CRP in 1986, because I was getting no·5·


· · ·yield and nothing from the ground, and it was developing·6·


· · ·into some weed problems out there that was a concern to·7·


· · ·both me and to Power County weed control people.·8·


· · · · · · · ·So I put it in there and took care of the·9·


· · ·weeds and put it into the CRP program.··In the meantime,10·


· · ·I discovered that that particular well driller had not11·


· · ·only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but12·


· · ·he had actually stolen the well drilling machine and13·


· · ·sold it.··So he was unable to even go forward with it.14·


· · · · · · · ·I found another driller in 1990 who indicated15·


· · ·that he would go ahead, contacted the power company to16·


· · ·see about them running a line out to that particular17·


· · ·farm area, which is located in the western part of Power18·


· · ·County and close to the lava rocks, and he was now going19·


· · ·to begin.20·


· · · · · · · ·And Idaho Power Company told me that at that21·


· · ·point in time they required a two- or three-year22·


· · ·planning stage before they could even consider extending23·


· · ·it.··So when I talked with the well driller about that,24·


· · ·he withdrew his willingness to go forward.25·
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· · · · · · · ·This continued through this particular period.·1·


· · ·And, of course, I did receive the order indicating in·2·


· · ·1992, I believe it was, I think it was the April 30 --·3·


· · ·May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well·4·


· · ·drilling permit in going forward and was advised at that·5·


· · ·time about its expiration in 1997, as far as some of·6·


· · ·that was concerned.·7·


· · · · · · · ·Anyway, it continued in the CRP program·8·


· · ·through that period of time.··And when I got a notice·9·


· · ·about trying to put in the proof of completion and10·


· · ·development, I was unable to do so because I couldn't11·


· · ·get a well drilled and I couldn't put any water on the12·


· · ·land because of the CRP.··The ground remained again and13·


· · ·was put into CRP in 19 -- actually in 1996.··The14·


· · ·Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on15·


· · ·their own and then sought new applications in 1997,16·


· · ·which they extended then for a ten-year period expiring17·


· · ·in 2007.18·


· · · · · · · ·At one point during that period of time I19·


· · ·filed my own application for extension of time for20·


· · ·completion of work and asked that it be extended through21·


· · ·2006, because that was my recollection of when the22·


· · ·current contract had been excluded, and then determined23·


· · ·afterwards that it came out to 2007.24·


· · · · · · · ·But as I recall, the Department only granted25·
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· · ·me to 2004.··And that particular determination, when I·1·


· · ·put in for that permit, I didn't go through the·2·


· · ·Department of Water Resources, because when I had given·3·


· · ·them the financing agreement to begin with, it was only·4·


· · ·going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to·5·


· · ·be renewed, and I had never renewed it with them.·6·


· · · · · · · ·Of course, even after that, in 1994, I never·7·


· · ·did receive the order direct from -- the first one on·8·


· · ·February 4 from the Department, but Farm Credit sent it·9·


· · ·to me and that is when I put in an application as to10·


· · ·that period of time.11·


· · · · · · · ·But the farm has been in CRP continuously.12·


· · ·Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons13·


· · ·that I indicated early to begin with, until 2007.··And14·


· · ·before it got through to 2007, and early 2007, they15·


· · ·extended it for two more years, through 2009.16·


· · · · · · · ·As of this date that extension order which17·


· · ·existed, will not be reconsidered.··It didn't require18·


· · ·anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay19·


· · ·them a small fee for a redetermination of acreage, which20·


· · ·had some new aerial photos.··But they wanted to do that21·


· · ·through that period of time, and I think that had to do22·


· · ·with something with county allotments.23·


· · · · · · · ·But at the present time the county allotment24·


· · ·is going to be reduced, I gather, and they will not25·
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· · ·renew it.··So come October of 2007 -- or 2009, this·1·


· · ·year, I will then be able to alleviate the problem with·2·


· · ·being able to consider the development and complete·3·


· · ·development of the acreage as I now require.·4·


· · · · · · · ·The order that was issued, of course, in·5·


· · ·granting the extension through 2007, in effect,·6·


· · ·precludes me from drilling.··And obviously I cannot put·7·


· · ·water on, although I have been given oral permission by·8·


· · ·the County Department of Agriculture representative to·9·


· · ·put a well in at any time so that I can start to10·


· · ·develop.11·


· · · · · · · ·I will not be able to put any water in, as12·


· · ·indicated, until after October 1 of 2007.··But at that13·


· · ·time I did find the prohibition against putting a well14·


· · ·on the premises, as long as I don't put extensions and15·


· · ·lines in for watering has been alleviated.16·


· · · · · · · ·Obviously when the other alleviation comes,17·


· · ·then my only particular problem that I have, as far as18·


· · ·being able to supply the completion of works, which the19·


· · ·Department has been extending for quite some time, will20·


· · ·be the problem of getting the permission of drilling a21·


· · ·well, which did not exist at the time the permit was22·


· · ·granted, but does now I guess exist, because I've been23·


· · ·told recently, since December 17 -- or December 17th24·


· · ·of -- or 21st, I guess, of this 2008, sometime during25·
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· · ·2008, that if I requested a well drilling permit, it·1·


· · ·would not be issued.··I presumed that that is based on·2·


· · ·what I gather is being called the "ESPA moratorium."·3·


· · · · · · · ·I believe with respect to that, that that ESPA·4·


· · ·moratorium came into effect after the granting of this·5·


· · ·permit, wherein I was permitted to drill a well without·6·


· · ·acquiring a well drilling permit.··I also believe that·7·


· · ·the moratorium basically operated as an interference·8·


· · ·with an existing right, which I think was precluded by·9·


· · ·Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code.10·


· · · · · · · ·If I gather from the findings, it has been11·


· · ·determined by the Department that the consumption that I12·


· · ·requested for is insignificant.13·


· · · · · · · ·MR. PEPPERSACK:··John, what is the code14·


· · ·section again that you referred to?15·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··42-1374(F).··That was a basic one16·


· · ·in the original powers of the Department.··I don't have17·


· · ·access to and could not get access to any supplements or18·


· · ·anything else as far as that code section is concerned.19·


· · ·So I don't know --20·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I have a code book21·


· · ·here and I don't find that.··I don't find a section that22·


· · ·is numbered that high.23·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Well, that was in on old book of24·


· · ·mine, and I suspect it was deleted when they adopted the25·
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· · ·new code section.··As I said, I didn't have access to·1·


· · ·the Idaho Code.·2·


· · · · · · · ·I would have to go back and -- whenever the·3·


· · ·new section was involved.··I do understand from -- I·4·


· · ·talked with somebody else that had been involved with·5·


· · ·waters that there was another statute adopted at one·6·


· · ·time that had to do with preservation of rights.··And I·7·


· · ·don't know what that code section is because of my lack·8·


· · ·of being able to access any authority on it.·9·


· · · · · · · ·It had to do with, as I understand, including10·


· · ·probably some sort of non-consumptive use, CRP type,11·


· · ·which is what I was precluded from during this period of12·


· · ·time, and other things in that regard, and I'm not sure13·


· · ·what they are.14·


· · · · · · · ·I had planned to try to get to Pocatello prior15·


· · ·to this hearing, and some other developments in my own16·


· · ·personal situation precluded that between the time the17·


· · ·order came out and this particular setting, so I was not18·


· · ·able to do that, as I said.19·


· · · · · · · ·My computer just -- my wife's computer will20·


· · ·not access whatever it takes to get into the law library21·


· · ·and the Tacoma (inaudible.)··Pierce County library22·


· · ·doesn't have anything --23·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··There are two, I24·


· · ·think, references to set-aside programs in the code, and25·
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· · ·one of those is related to whether the right can be·1·


· · ·forfeited while it's in a set-aside program.··And the·2·


· · ·code says that a water right cannot be forfeited.··Of·3·


· · ·course, this is a permit, so I don't think that·4·


· · ·forfeiture is a legal theory that would apply to a·5·


· · ·permit.·6·


· · · · · · · ·The other provision of law is that extensions·7·


· · ·of time can be granted during the tenancy of that·8·


· · ·enrollment in a federal set-aside program, so that the·9·


· · ·permit is somehow not lost because of failure of ability10·


· · ·to submit the proof of beneficial use during the11·


· · ·development period.12·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Well, I appreciate that13·


· · ·explanation, and I was suspecting that probably there14·


· · ·was something like that, that is why I wanted to do the15·


· · ·research and I was unable to do so.··I do think,16·


· · ·however, that the permit itself, as it existed at the17·


· · ·time when the drilling permit was not considered or18·


· · ·whatever and which continues under its provisions, does19·


· · ·constitute a water right of a nature.20·


· · · · · · · ·Sure, it's not been developed, true, but at21·


· · ·the same time I was not in a legal position.··I was22·


· · ·precluded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a23·


· · ·complete development.··And to me that is sort of an24·


· · ·inconsistency, that is, when I'm going ahead with25·
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· · ·inconsistency, as far as saying, Hey, you have got to·1·


· · ·develop this, when I can't get a well permit, a drilling·2·


· · ·permit to proceed by reason of the adoption of the·3·


· · ·moratorium code.·4·


· · · · · · · ·And that inconsistency to me is what I have·5·


· · ·been trying to do in the meantime.··I have always wanted·6·


· · ·to develop it, but at the same time I couldn't let the·7·


· · ·land just sit there and go to weeds.··I had to do·8·


· · ·something about it.··And putting it into grasses was a·9·


· · ·benefit to everyone.··It produces a little bit of10·


· · ·revenue for me and at the same time produced a benefit11·


· · ·to the general public, as far as providing some very12·


· · ·good area for grouse and other wildlife.13·


· · · · · · · ·Personally, actually in looking at the grass14·


· · ·that was given to me -- and I know we talked about this15·


· · ·at the informal conference at one time as to whether16·


· · ·this particular ground actually lies within that Blue17·


· · ·Lakes groundwater curtailment area or not.··And18·


· · ·physically I can't tell from the map because I know how19·


· · ·far that particular boundary is marked on the map, and20·


· · ·we discussed the fact that it's not a good marking21·


· · ·described.22·


· · · · · · · ·I don't know what the description is when it23·


· · ·was described because I haven't acquired actually any24·


· · ·reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line25·
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· · ·or whatever it is exists at that particular point.·1·


· · · · · · · ·I know that my land is located in the·2·


· · ·southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31·3·


· · ·in Township 6 (inaudible) Range 31 east, and that is it.·4·


· · ·But regardless, it's close, there is no question about·5·


· · ·it.·6·


· · · · · · · ·But I still think that -- and that is why I'm·7·


· · ·talking about mitigation and continues conditions,·8·


· · ·because the one condition that needs to be alleviated in·9·


· · ·this particular order, now that the ownership question10·


· · ·has been started, is what is required to be able to11·


· · ·allow me to hire a driller so that I can put the land12·


· · ·into cultivation as was contemplated at the time and13·


· · ·would have been done had I not had the one well driller14·


· · ·quit on me after I had acquired the (inaudible) to15·


· · ·proceed, and then the other guy commit a fraud against16·


· · ·me with respect to it before getting that done.··And so17·


· · ·that is all that I could do in the meantime, and that I18·


· · ·guess is exactly where I am.19·


· · · · · · · ·I believe that when this land goes back, I20·


· · ·don't know whether there is a farmer who is interested21·


· · ·in trying to put this very small tract of land into dry22·


· · ·farm again in the lava rocks where it exists, because23·


· · ·there are some good piles of rock in there that are24·


· · ·within a few inches of the surface.··It's very marginal25·
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· · ·land, but it was borderline marginal.··And so when the·1·


· · ·County had to pick it out, this is one they took off of·2·


· · ·the program.·3·


· · · · · · · ·At the same time as I financed, the big·4·


· · ·finance on what was in existence at the time that I·5·


· · ·signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the·6·


· · ·acquisition of another farm that I have, which was·7·


· · ·basically my retirement from what little monies I had.·8·


· · · · · · · ·I also came out of a litigation, a litigation·9·


· · ·which I was not involved, but when some parties got a10·


· · ·judgment on a farm that is located on the Power County11·


· · ·and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within12·


· · ·Power County, and that was in existence.13·


· · · · · · · ·And in order to acquire I had to put this14·


· · ·particular farm up with my water right on it to15·


· · ·sufficiently finance the acquisition of that land.··And16·


· · ·I did have a farmer engaged in partnership on it, and he17·


· · ·ran into his financial problems and had to back out and18·


· · ·I had to buy him out of that one as well.19·


· · · · · · · ·So in the meantime I finally paid off Farm20·


· · ·Credit, as I said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but I kind of21·


· · ·paid off on both farms at that point in time.··And I'm22·


· · ·now looking at what I can do to find something to do23·


· · ·with this particular farm there, this small farm in24·


· · ·Pleasant Valley.25·
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· · · · · · · ·And I think that hopefully these type of·1·


· · ·things do fall within the provisions of what the·2·


· · ·Department operates under, as far as alleviating the·3·


· · ·conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as I·4·


· · ·said, as of October 1, 2007.·5·


· · · · · · · ·That is why when I put in the request·6·


· · ·originally, I thought I could get it in within one year,·7·


· · ·knowing that I still have to get an extension of power·8·


· · ·to reach that particular ground.··It's about a quarter·9·


· · ·of a mile of extension of line.··Not knowing what Idaho10·


· · ·Power's current situation is, I thought maybe I should11·


· · ·figure on a three-year plan.12·


· · · · · · · ·The rules still provide, of course, that you13·


· · ·try to get started within what first year, and that is14·


· · ·what I would like to do, even if it took a little longer15·


· · ·to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm16·


· · ·itself.··That is where I am.17·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.18·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··If there are any questions, I am19·


· · ·certainly glad to answer them, as far as some of the20·


· · ·specifics, or if you need further documentation.··I21·


· · ·agree with you that, why on a couple of times Mr. Hill22·


· · ·proceeded with where he did and then didn't.23·


· · ·(Inaudible) the other, I don't know.24·


· · · · · · · ·But they would change their offices from25·
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· · ·Blackfoot, where I normally was doing things, to Idaho·1·


· · ·Falls, and I didn't get to see him very often during·2·


· · ·that time, but he didn't come down to see me either·3·


· · ·because I was making my payments.·4·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··John, there is some·5·


· · ·questions that, I guess, I have, and they have to do·6·


· · ·more with the basis for your challenge and the legal·7·


· · ·grounds that you may argue are the basis for the·8·


· · ·Department allowing you to go forward.·9·


· · · · · · · ·So I guess I would like to go back through the10·


· · ·information that we have, and try to pinpoint and11·


· · ·identify the times and where you think the Department12·


· · ·has done something that it's either not authorized to do13·


· · ·or that at some juncture the Department should let go of14·


· · ·where we are at.15·


· · · · · · · ·So, as I see this record, the permit was16·


· · ·issued to you in July -- on July 27, 1990.17·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes, even though I had put the18·


· · ·permit in in 1984, during that period of time -- well,19·


· · ·it didn't appear here -- there was some communications20·


· · ·about the first well driller.··He didn't get his work21·


· · ·done when that got off, that was communicated to the22·


· · ·Department, and there was no letter in here reflecting23·


· · ·that, even a notation of the conversation that I had24·


· · ·with the Department, they were made aware of it.··And I25·
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· · ·was told -- and I think that is contained in a·1·


· · ·application that I was told not to be concerned with·2·


· · ·because they weren't doing any processing by reason of·3·


· · ·the water hearings.··And at that particular time they·4·


· · ·were not doing any processing of permits to actually go·5·


· · ·ahead and issue them in '84, '85.·6·


· · · · · · · ··But, of course, as I said at that time had I·7·


· · ·not had my problems in that aspect, I would have them·8·


· · ·all and we wouldn't be here where we are today.··That is·9·


· · ·what I'm talking about mitigation in that particular10·


· · ·regard.11·


· · · · · · · ·I do think that I had in 1990 when I was12·


· · ·right, the right to get a well permit.··I think that was13·


· · ·an existing right at that time.··But that existing right14·


· · ·I think was then taken away from me when I caught15·


· · ·mention of the statutes.··That is the way I feel about16·


· · ·how that interpetation should be.17·


· · · · · · · ·And when the limitation came in and it said:18·


· · ·Fine, this is going to expire in 1997, I didn't think19·


· · ·about it because 1997 was when my contract was up on the20·


· · ·CRP contract.··And so at that time I thought:··Fine, I21·


· · ·can just go ahead.··And then at one point thereafter I22·


· · ·didn't get ahold of the orders that Mr. Hill proceeded,23·


· · ·I wasn't involved, and that is why we had that mixup24·


· · ·about ownership that I didn't think was going to be25·
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· · ·filed, was not aware of it until we got into these·1·


· · ·proceedings where we are today.··I guess basically that·2·


· · ·is about the best I can do at this point in time.·3·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, we could go·4·


· · ·back and probably recreate a record of why the·5·


· · ·application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.·6·


· · ·And I suspect that that documentation probably would·7·


· · ·show that there were orders and restrictions that were·8·


· · ·put in place for the processing of the applications,·9·


· · ·would fall within what was called trust water area, and10·


· · ·there was an ongoing lawsuit with Idaho Power and the11·


· · ·Swan Falls agreement that was signed.12·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I never had any notice of any of13·


· · ·those proceedings or any information to that regard.··I14·


· · ·went through my old file, because I did have the old15·


· · ·file with my old permit, and there was nothing in there16·


· · ·to that extent.17·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, I don't find18·


· · ·any of that here, except I did find some correspondence19·


· · ·from Tim Luke in the, I think, early 1990s.20·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.··There was some21·


· · ·correspondence from him when he sent me a copy of the22·


· · ·'93 order or '92, as I remember it.··I would have to go23·


· · ·back and look.24·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··There shouldn't be25·
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· · ·-- this is '94, 1990, so --·1·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.·2·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··During the Swan·3·


· · ·Falls litigation, Department approval may have been·4·


· · ·delayed.··The Department is presently reviewing your·5·


· · ·application.·6·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I do have that letter.·7·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And that is the·8·


· · ·first indication, at least looking at this, so I think·9·


· · ·what I would want to do is start with the date the10·


· · ·permit was issued, because it was issued, it had a first11·


· · ·priority date of October 4, 1984, which would be the12·


· · ·date of filing.··And so that below, other than perhaps13·


· · ·now in retrospect looking back on it, if you had hurried14·


· · ·to develop -- I'm not sure you could have.··It probably15·


· · ·was held up by Swan Falls anyway.16·


· · · · · · · ·So this was issued, and then following the17·


· · ·issuance of that the Department issued an order in 1994,18·


· · ·subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed19·


· · ·the development under this permit.20·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Correct.21·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Now, you contest22·


· · ·that particular order; is that correct?23·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.··I don't think -- because24·


· · ·that stay, in effect, says you have to have a well25·
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· · ·drilling permit, which my permit did not require at the·1·


· · ·time -- well, it did have, but it says that my permit·2·


· · ·said I could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that time·3·


· · ·it was granted in '84.·4·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.·5·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··But yes, I know they changed that·6·


· · ·and put the well drillers into a filing, not being able·7·


· · ·to do any work, but they adopted the well driller code·8·


· · ·in '87.··But I think that the effect of that -- and·9·


· · ·that's, again, I honestly believe, I don't know from a10·


· · ·legal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or11·


· · ·anything during this whole entire period of time and not12·


· · ·having had any of the notices because of that very13·


· · ·complicated hearing, I know there were a lot other14·


· · ·people who did get notices from the Department, but I15·


· · ·didn't, so I didn't know where I stood as far as that16·


· · ·goes.17·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, I do want to18·


· · ·refer you to Idaho Code Section 42-1805, and this is19·


· · ·subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805.··And this is a code20·


· · ·section that is titled "Additional Duties" and describes21·


· · ·some of the duties that have been delegated by the22·


· · ·legislature to the director of the Department of Water23·


· · ·Resources.24·


· · · · · · · ·It says:··"The director shall have the25·
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· · ·following powers and duties in subparagraph 7."··It·1·


· · ·says:··"After notice to suspend the issuance where·2·


· · ·further action on permits or applications that is·3·


· · ·necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to·4·


· · ·ensure compliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42·5·


· · ·Idaho Code."·6·


· · · · · · · ·So at least here in this code section it·7·


· · ·grants the director the authority to stop the·8·


· · ·development under permits that had been issued to·9·


· · ·people.10·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··When was that adopted, if I may11·


· · ·ask?12·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, I would have13·


· · ·to go back through --14·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··It should show at the bottom of15·


· · ·the page, I think.16·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Sure.··Yeah.··I17·


· · ·don't know -- I don't know how many amendments have been18·


· · ·produced.··There are several here.19·


· · · · · · · ·Why don't I just show you.··You could look20·


· · ·through those annotations or the history right at the21·


· · ·bottom and there are several amendments.··So I don't22·


· · ·know whether that was added and when.··We could go back23·


· · ·through, I guess, the section once and it's possible.24·


· · ·We could get you a copy of that if you want, John.25·
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· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That's all right.··I do intend to·1·


· · ·figure out somehow how I can get into it, but --·2·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Certainly the·3·


· · ·Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have a vehicle·4·


· · ·here with you today.·5·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No, I do not, or I would have·6·


· · ·gone over.··I have to get back right away.··Let's not·7·


· · ·take any more time with the hearing now and I'll just·8·


· · ·look at this after we are through, if I may.·9·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Yeah, that is fine.10·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··If you have another question I11·


· · ·can --12·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Yeah.··I guess13·


· · ·beyond that then, the order was issued in 2005.··And14·


· · ·then you received a notice that proof was due, and we15·


· · ·issued an extension of time when you requested it.··And16·


· · ·by my reading, that extension extended the time for17·


· · ·proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order.··That18·


· · ·is the way I read this, because the 2005 order -- let me19·


· · ·look back.··I was looking in the wrong place.20·


· · · · · · · ·By the way, this order actually quotes at the21·


· · ·time it was issued in 1995, Section 43-1805,22·


· · ·subparagraph 7.··So it apparently was in place at the23·


· · ·time this order was issued.24·


· · · · · · · ·But this order said at the -- this is 1994,25·
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· · ·I'm sorry.··I meant to look at the 1995 order.·1·


· · · · · · · ·The order that I'm referring to is an April·2·


· · ·4th -- is dated April 4th, 1995.··And the last condition·3·


· · ·under the order portion of the document states:··"This·4·


· · ·order does not grant a stay in development beyond·5·


· · ·December 31st, 1997."··Now, that language could be·6·


· · ·interpreted a couple of ways.··One way I guess it could·7·


· · ·be interpreted is that the stay in development is -- or·8·


· · ·the stay is finished and that the period of time for·9·


· · ·development starts to run again.10·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That is what I thought it meant,11·


· · ·because when it talked about well drilling expiring in12·


· · ·'97, in fact, I thought by 1997 I could put into it,13·


· · ·then I found out I couldn't.14·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, the request15·


· · ·for extension of time we approved also said proof of16·


· · ·beneficial use needed to be submitted by December 31st,17·


· · ·1997.··Now, usually that setup, I guess, is a physical18·


· · ·impossibility because a stay was in place, and this is19·


· · ·the inconsistency, but we required the filing of proof20·


· · ·which couldn't be because there was a stay.21·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··And still cannot.22·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And you had a CRP23·


· · ·contract (inaudible).24·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That's correct.25·
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· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So then there was a·1·


· · ·second request for an extension of time that you filed.·2·


· · ·And this actually was filed, I think it's signed by·3·


· · ·Richard Hill.·4·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That's correct.··He filed one in·5·


· · ·December, and I filed a different one separately myself,·6·


· · ·and I can't remember when I got it filed.··I filed one·7·


· · ·on my own, and I didn't see a copy of that, as I recall,·8·


· · ·in the papers I received.··I filed one, paid a $50 fee·9·


· · ·asking to go till 2006, and there is a letter in there10·


· · ·telling me it was approved for the end of 2004, and I11·


· · ·had requested to 2006.··And I didn't see that in that12·


· · ·particular file.··Maybe it's me, because there was so13·


· · ·much paper to go through trying to figure out in the14·


· · ·copying process what fit where.15·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··So what I16·


· · ·have at least, and I'll try to reconcile those dates,17·


· · ·but what I have is, I have an extension of time that was18·


· · ·approved until December 31st, 1997.··Then I have another19·


· · ·one that extended the time for development for another20·


· · ·five years, and this was based on the CRP enrollment,21·


· · ·until, December 1, 2002.··And then I have another one22·


· · ·that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the23·


· · ·time for proof of beneficial use until December 1, 2007.24·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··There is one other one that Mr.25·
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· · ·Hill filed.·1·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, it was·2·


· · ·jointly filed.·3·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Okay.·4·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:· ·So there is a dual·5·


· · ·signature on this one.·6·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yeah, I remember he contacted me·7·


· · ·at some point in time during that period of time, even·8·


· · ·though I didn't have much remitting on my contract·9·


· · ·there.10·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··But this extended11·


· · ·the date for submittal of proof until December 1, 2007.12·


· · ·At that point in time you filed another request for13·


· · ·extension of time, and that is what prompted the14·


· · ·December 6, 2007 order from those signed by Jeff.15·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yeah.··I think there is a letter16·


· · ·in there that shows that when I was concerned about the17·


· · ·2007, which was the then end of my CRP contract.··I18·


· · ·originally had thought it was 2006 when I put in one19·


· · ·request.20·


· · · · · · · ·But anyway, I stopped in in September of 200021·


· · ·and was unable to get -- because the computers weren't22·


· · ·working that day that I was in there.··Talking with the23·


· · ·one lady, and then they sent me the information that24·


· · ·said:··Here this is what you need to do with the25·
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· · ·extension request, which I filled out at that particular·1·


· · ·point in time, yes.·2·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So you are not·3·


· · ·contesting the issuance of these extensions of time.·4·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No, not at all.·5·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··They are documents·6·


· · ·that extend the permit --·7·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Just how it affects me, and that·8·


· · ·is the inconsistency that I talked about between, Hey,·9·


· · ·there is no way I could ever comply with that until I am10·


· · ·able to drill a well and put the water on it.11·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So are you12·


· · ·contesting the ability of the Department now to issue13·


· · ·another order continuing the indefinite stay in the14·


· · ·development period?15·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes, because at this particular16·


· · ·point in time I can alleviate it, and that precludes me17·


· · ·from being able to drill a well and convert it to what18·


· · ·it was originally intended.19·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.··All right.20·


· · ·Well, I understand the arguments.··And I don't know that21·


· · ·we need to go over anything else.··Is there anything22·


· · ·that else that you want to discuss with us?23·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No.··That concludes what I have24·


· · ·and what I know at this particular point in time.··I do25·
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· · ·appreciate the chance to let me look at your code·1·


· · ·sections here for a few minutes.·2·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Yeah.·3·


· · · · · · · ·Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at·4·


· · ·this point?·5·


· · · · · · · ·MR. PEPPERSACK:··No.·6·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··All right.·7·


· · ·Thank you.·8·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I just hope I've come up with the·9·


· · ·showing that conditions will be alleviated as is set10·


· · ·forth, as against what is in -- and do that which I have11·


· · ·not been able to do.··And that this insignificant12·


· · ·consumption aspect is material to you and that you are13·


· · ·able to find something from a mitigation standpoint as a14·


· · ·result of my particular problems in this particular15·


· · ·relevant time.16·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··And the17·


· · ·current period of CRP enrollment expires when?18·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··September 30th, 2009.19·


· · · · · · · ·On October 1 I can start to put water in, and20·


· · ·I have been given permission to drill a well on it.21·


· · ·That is only oral, I don't have it in writing, from the22·


· · ·Department with the Power County agent.23·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··You say by the24·


· · ·Department, you are talking about someone from Power25·
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· · ·County.·1·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.··The Department of·2·


· · ·Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.·3·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.·4·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··He has authorized me, to say you·5·


· · ·can put a well on it, but you cannot develop, further·6·


· · ·development at this time.·7·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So he says you can·8·


· · ·put a well on when?·9·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Now.··I can put one on tomorrow.10·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··That doesn't11·


· · ·violate the terms of the CRP.12·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··He says it will not violate the13·


· · ·terms in this last year of concern.··He said, You can't14·


· · ·put water on it because that would be a violation.15·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··Very good.16·


· · ·Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,17·


· · ·nice to see you again.18·


· · · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Tell Debby thank you for19·


· · ·arranging to have that proceeding right here.··I didn't20·


· · ·even know it existed, and to accommodate me as far as21·


· · ·time so I can get down and back in a day.22·


· · · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Sure.··Very good.23·


· · ·Okay.··We'll close the record.··Thanks.24·


· · · · · · · ·(End of audio tape.)25·
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· · · · · · ·(Start of audio tape.)·1·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··We are·2·


· ·recording.··This is the time and place set for a hearing·3·


· ·regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the·4·


· ·Indefinite Stay in Development Period," signed by the·5·


· ·Department in December 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack,·6·


· ·Bureau Chief Water Allocation Bureau.··And it's in the·7·


· ·matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B.·8·


· ·Kugler, and at the time I think it listed Northwest Farm·9·


· ·Credit Services as well.10·


· · · · · · ·It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit11·


· ·Services is no longer involved; or is that correct, Mr.12·


· ·Kugler?13·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That is correct.··They should14·


· ·have filed the fact that I paid the mortgage off back in15·


· ·2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004.··But they have16·


· ·filed it now, so it's in my name alone at this point in17·


· ·time and they have no interest in the property.18·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I'm not sure we19·


· ·have that change.20·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··It's all there.21·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··We did have22·


· ·you sign.··So that has come in since then, this was23·


· ·dated January 28th.24·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That part has been accepted now25·
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· ·by the Department.·1·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··That was January·2·


· ·28th, and I didn't look at the records, but I assume·3·


· ·they've been changed.··So our records should reflect·4·


· ·that this is now in the name of John B. Kugler, and the·5·


· ·case caption will be titled an amended so that you are·6·


· ·the sole owner of this permit shown in our records.·7·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Along with my wife.·8·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Oh, okay.·9·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··But I don't remember how it got10·


· ·deeded back to me.11·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··It doesn't show12·


· ·that in the assignment.··So I don't know how that is13·


· ·shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way14·


· ·it is in the permit for the Department.15·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That may be in my name alone.··I16·


· ·don't recall.··Since then I've gotten the original.17·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I suspect it is.18·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I've got "John B. or" on the19·


· ·original.20·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··We don't normally21·


· ·have -- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows22·


· ·it in Kugler's name, in John's name.23·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··And/or Diane K., at my request.24·


· ·I put it that way, what I faxed in, because I excluded25·
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· ·it in my own typing on my request for reconsideration·1·


· ·that Northwest had no interest.··And I just raised it as·2·


· ·an exception (inaudible).·3·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··I have this·4·


· ·request from you.··Let's see, reconsider its finding,·5·


· ·should we go down this path I've been anticipating.·6·


· ·Just that we normally issue something that is, other·7·


· ·than that we've changed.·8·


· · · · · · ·MR. PEPPERSACK:··No.··I think we should base·9·


· ·it completely on the assignment trail.··So the10·


· ·assignment was just in John's name and that's as far as11·


· ·it went.12·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··My guess is that13·


· ·that is the way our records show because that is the way14·


· ·the assignment is.··I was looking for something else15·


· ·that might have changed that, and I don't see it here.16·


· · · · · · ·So anyway, that is probably something you may17·


· ·want to address later, John, if --18·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I would -- you don't need to.19·


· ·I'm making a note to myself in regard to that request of20·


· ·time.21·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And it may require22·


· ·that you assign the permit to you and your wife.23·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··If I do that, I will get24·


· ·Northwest to execute another transfer document.25·
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· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I think Northwest·1·


· ·has fully assigned the permit to you.·2·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Okay.·3·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So I think at least·4·


· ·we would recognize you as the sole owner of the permit·5·


· ·now.··So I think it just --·6·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··The only one that I would upset·7·


· ·is my wife.··(Laughter.)·8·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And it probably may·9·


· ·or may not be community property.··I don't know.10·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··It definitely is community11·


· ·property.12·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I don't know what13·


· ·the state of Washington is.14·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Exactly, Washington is a15·


· ·community property state, one of the eight.16·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··All right.··So,17·


· ·again, we are here.··The order was issued in November of18·


· ·2007.··And in response to service of the order upon him,19·


· ·or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a20·


· ·hearing.··That request for hearing was granted.21·


· · · · · · ·We conducted the prehearing conference, but we22·


· ·met with you and talked about the facts and some of the23·


· ·background related to this.··And then I wrote a letter24·


· ·to you that essentially confirmed our opinion that the25·
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· ·order would stand, and so we went forward with the·1·


· ·hearing, and that is why we are here today.·2·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I understand, yes.·3·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And before we began·4·


· ·the recording, we discussed the way in which we would·5·


· ·proceed.··Again, this is not necessarily a contested·6·


· ·case hearing because we don't have two parties.··The·7·


· ·Department has issued a decision.··This is an·8·


· ·opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the·9·


· ·Department to consider in looking at everything again.10·


· ·And then the Department will issue ultimately a decision11·


· ·based on the record that is provided today.12·


· · · · · · ·And I do want to mention for the record that13·


· ·Mr. Kugler has received copies of all the documents that14·


· ·are contained in the file.··And I have reviewed those15·


· ·documents and will consider the documents that are16·


· ·contained therein in ultimately writing a preliminary17·


· ·order for this matter.18·


· · · · · · ·And I'm sure, John, you have some additional19·


· ·documents that you want to offer today.20·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I did not bring any documents.21·


· ·The order required that I provide them to you in22·


· ·advance, so I have not brought any documents.··I would23·


· ·like to testify in the narrative, if I may.24·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··That is25·
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· ·permitted, and I would be willing to allow you to offer·1·


· ·something if you have it.··So I don't see a procedural·2·


· ·problem with that at this point.·3·


· · · · · · ·I want to acknowledge today that Jeff·4·


· ·Peppersack is assisting me today in this hearing.··And I·5·


· ·also want to call attention to some documents that may·6·


· ·not be here but are referred to in the Order Continuing·7·


· ·the Indefinite Stay in Development Period.·8·


· · · · · · ·There are a couple of documents that I think·9·


· ·are important.··Our orders issued by the Department that10·


· ·are referred to as "moratorium orders" that were issued11·


· ·to all water right holders.··I have at least two12·


· ·applicants that are -- there are two applicants whose13·


· ·filings are pending, and those are referred to.··There14·


· ·is a May 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 199315·


· ·order that was issued.16·


· · · · · · ·So anyway, with that background, John, I don't17·


· ·have anything else to add as a preliminary matter.··Do18·


· ·you have anything you want to say before you have an19·


· ·opportunity to testify?20·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No, sir.21·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, if you would22·


· ·stand please, John, and raise your right-hand.23·


·24·


· ·///25·
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· · · · · · · · · · · · ·JOHN B. KUGLER,·1·


· ·first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said·2·


· ·cause, testified as follows:·3·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Thank you.··Please·4·


· ·be seated.·5·


· · · · · · ·As we discussed before, you may narrate your·6·


· ·testimony and we'll see where we go from there.·7·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Thank you, Mr. Spackman.·8·


· · · · · · ·This particular property came to me as a part·9·


· ·of a particular problem in the development of doing an10·


· ·estate for a person because it was owned prior to my11·


· ·acquisition by about 13 different heirs, and the farmer12·


· ·who had been farming the particular property did not13·


· ·want to buy it at its appraised value.14·


· · · · · · ·And so when one or two of the heirs insisted15·


· ·that they would like to get their value out of it16·


· ·percentage-wise, I spoke with the majority heir that was17·


· ·involved, one of them had over a third interest of it,18·


· ·and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any19·


· ·particular time -- but I felt it ought to always go for20·


· ·at least the appraised value and I would buy the odd21·


· ·share so that she didn't have a particular problem in22·


· ·covering on it.··She could acquire it from me if she23·


· ·wished.··And that was done and that is what started it.24·


· · · · · · ·And a couple years -- within that particular25·
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· ·first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,·1·


· ·no, it was late '70s, she decided that she wanted to·2·


· ·sell hers as well.··And at that point in time I acquired·3·


· ·all of the property and took out a loan from Farm Credit·4·


· ·Services for the purchase price that I needed to come up·5·


· ·with to acquire the land.·6·


· · · · · · ·That farm was being farmed at the time the·7·


· ·heir died by one farmer.··And when she decided to sell,·8·


· ·he decided he no longer wanted to farm the land.··And I·9·


· ·found another farmer who would rent the property and10·


· ·produce a little bit of funds, as far as income to the11·


· ·property was concerned.··That was a man by the name of12·


· ·Melvin Funk.13·


· · · · · · ·Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own14·


· ·particular financial problems, and in 1983 he told me he15·


· ·could no longer and would no longer attempt to farm the16·


· ·land, by reason of the fact that it was not very17·


· ·productive.··He was getting very low yields.··Even when18·


· ·he was farming it, he would be lucky to get 15 to 1819·


· ·bushels of wheat off of the ground.··As a result, he was20·


· ·taking a good share of that.21·


· · · · · · ·I decided that I would, because I had the loan22·


· ·almost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give me23·


· ·a loan for development, I put in for the purpose of24·


· ·developing the water in 1984, and the application was25·
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· ·filed.·1·


· · · · · · ·At that same time when I was looking for a·2·


· ·well driller, I found a driller, a young man who had·3·


· ·been drilling, working for somebody else for quite a·4·


· ·while.··And he indicated that he would go ahead and·5·


· ·drill for me if I would buy the drilling rig, and he·6·


· ·would pay me for any money back, but if I would pay him·7·


· ·a particular rate for his time involved in the drilling.·8·


· · · · · · ·I bought a drill rig that was found and·9·


· ·located for $12,000.··And then we discovered that the10·


· ·bits that came with it were insufficient, so I went out11·


· ·and purchased a little larger bit, drill bit as12·


· ·required, so we would have a 16-inch hole, and that cost13·


· ·me an additional $1,600, and then I had some14·


· ·miscellaneous expenses.··So I was into that at about15·


· ·13.5.16·


· · · · · · ·And at that point in time, in 1984, I didn't17·


· ·have to have a drilling permit, nor did he.··But the18·


· ·young man then decided that he wanted to do something19·


· ·else and was not interested in drilling.··I then found20·


· ·another individual who was an established well driller21·


· ·who said he would drill it and take it over if I would22·


· ·give him the drill at the end of the period when he23·


· ·finished.··I indicated to him that I would do so.24·


· · · · · ··However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to25·
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· ·doing it.··And, of course, in 1987 one was then required·1·


· ·to get a drilling permit before one could proceed with·2·


· ·that stage of the development.·3·


· · · · · · ·As a result of him not getting it done, I put·4·


· ·the land into CRP in 1986, because I was getting no·5·


· ·yield and nothing from the ground, and it was developing·6·


· ·into some weed problems out there that was a concern to·7·


· ·both me and to Power County weed control people.·8·


· · · · · · ·So I put it in there and took care of the·9·


· ·weeds and put it into the CRP program.··In the meantime,10·


· ·I discovered that that particular well driller had not11·


· ·only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but12·


· ·he had actually stolen the well drilling machine and13·


· ·sold it.··So he was unable to even go forward with it.14·


· · · · · · ·I found another driller in 1990 who indicated15·


· ·that he would go ahead, contacted the power company to16·


· ·see about them running a line out to that particular17·


· ·farm area, which is located in the western part of Power18·


· ·County and close to the lava rocks, and he was now going19·


· ·to begin.20·


· · · · · · ·And Idaho Power Company told me that at that21·


· ·point in time they required a two- or three-year22·


· ·planning stage before they could even consider extending23·


· ·it.··So when I talked with the well driller about that,24·


· ·he withdrew his willingness to go forward.25·
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· · · · · · ·This continued through this particular period.·1·


· ·And, of course, I did receive the order indicating in·2·


· ·1992, I believe it was, I think it was the April 30 --·3·


· ·May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well·4·


· ·drilling permit in going forward and was advised at that·5·


· ·time about its expiration in 1997, as far as some of·6·


· ·that was concerned.·7·


· · · · · · ·Anyway, it continued in the CRP program·8·


· ·through that period of time.··And when I got a notice·9·


· ·about trying to put in the proof of completion and10·


· ·development, I was unable to do so because I couldn't11·


· ·get a well drilled and I couldn't put any water on the12·


· ·land because of the CRP.··The ground remained again and13·


· ·was put into CRP in 19 -- actually in 1996.··The14·


· ·Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on15·


· ·their own and then sought new applications in 1997,16·


· ·which they extended then for a ten-year period expiring17·


· ·in 2007.18·


· · · · · · ·At one point during that period of time I19·


· ·filed my own application for extension of time for20·


· ·completion of work and asked that it be extended through21·


· ·2006, because that was my recollection of when the22·


· ·current contract had been excluded, and then determined23·


· ·afterwards that it came out to 2007.24·


· · · · · · ·But as I recall, the Department only granted25·
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· ·me to 2004.··And that particular determination, when I·1·


· ·put in for that permit, I didn't go through the·2·


· ·Department of Water Resources, because when I had given·3·


· ·them the financing agreement to begin with, it was only·4·


· ·going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to·5·


· ·be renewed, and I had never renewed it with them.·6·


· · · · · · ·Of course, even after that, in 1994, I never·7·


· ·did receive the order direct from -- the first one on·8·


· ·February 4 from the Department, but Farm Credit sent it·9·


· ·to me and that is when I put in an application as to10·


· ·that period of time.11·


· · · · · · ·But the farm has been in CRP continuously.12·


· ·Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons13·


· ·that I indicated early to begin with, until 2007.··And14·


· ·before it got through to 2007, and early 2007, they15·


· ·extended it for two more years, through 2009.16·


· · · · · · ·As of this date that extension order which17·


· ·existed, will not be reconsidered.··It didn't require18·


· ·anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay19·


· ·them a small fee for a redetermination of acreage, which20·


· ·had some new aerial photos.··But they wanted to do that21·


· ·through that period of time, and I think that had to do22·


· ·with something with county allotments.23·


· · · · · · ·But at the present time the county allotment24·


· ·is going to be reduced, I gather, and they will not25·
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· ·renew it.··So come October of 2007 -- or 2009, this·1·


· ·year, I will then be able to alleviate the problem with·2·


· ·being able to consider the development and complete·3·


· ·development of the acreage as I now require.·4·


· · · · · · ·The order that was issued, of course, in·5·


· ·granting the extension through 2007, in effect,·6·


· ·precludes me from drilling.··And obviously I cannot put·7·


· ·water on, although I have been given oral permission by·8·


· ·the County Department of Agriculture representative to·9·


· ·put a well in at any time so that I can start to10·


· ·develop.11·


· · · · · · ·I will not be able to put any water in, as12·


· ·indicated, until after October 1 of 2007.··But at that13·


· ·time I did find the prohibition against putting a well14·


· ·on the premises, as long as I don't put extensions and15·


· ·lines in for watering has been alleviated.16·


· · · · · · ·Obviously when the other alleviation comes,17·


· ·then my only particular problem that I have, as far as18·


· ·being able to supply the completion of works, which the19·


· ·Department has been extending for quite some time, will20·


· ·be the problem of getting the permission of drilling a21·


· ·well, which did not exist at the time the permit was22·


· ·granted, but does now I guess exist, because I've been23·


· ·told recently, since December 17 -- or December 17th24·


· ·of -- or 21st, I guess, of this 2008, sometime during25·
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· ·2008, that if I requested a well drilling permit, it·1·


· ·would not be issued.··I presumed that that is based on·2·


· ·what I gather is being called the "ESPA moratorium."·3·


· · · · · · ·I believe with respect to that, that that ESPA·4·


· ·moratorium came into effect after the granting of this·5·


· ·permit, wherein I was permitted to drill a well without·6·


· ·acquiring a well drilling permit.··I also believe that·7·


· ·the moratorium basically operated as an interference·8·


· ·with an existing right, which I think was precluded by·9·


· ·Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code.10·


· · · · · · ·If I gather from the findings, it has been11·


· ·determined by the Department that the consumption that I12·


· ·requested for is insignificant.13·


· · · · · · ·MR. PEPPERSACK:··John, what is the code14·


· ·section again that you referred to?15·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··42-1374(F).··That was a basic one16·


· ·in the original powers of the Department.··I don't have17·


· ·access to and could not get access to any supplements or18·


· ·anything else as far as that code section is concerned.19·


· ·So I don't know --20·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··I have a code book21·


· ·here and I don't find that.··I don't find a section that22·


· ·is numbered that high.23·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Well, that was in on old book of24·


· ·mine, and I suspect it was deleted when they adopted the25·
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· ·new code section.··As I said, I didn't have access to·1·


· ·the Idaho Code.·2·


· · · · · · ·I would have to go back and -- whenever the·3·


· ·new section was involved.··I do understand from -- I·4·


· ·talked with somebody else that had been involved with·5·


· ·waters that there was another statute adopted at one·6·


· ·time that had to do with preservation of rights.··And I·7·


· ·don't know what that code section is because of my lack·8·


· ·of being able to access any authority on it.·9·


· · · · · · ·It had to do with, as I understand, including10·


· ·probably some sort of non-consumptive use, CRP type,11·


· ·which is what I was precluded from during this period of12·


· ·time, and other things in that regard, and I'm not sure13·


· ·what they are.14·


· · · · · · ·I had planned to try to get to Pocatello prior15·


· ·to this hearing, and some other developments in my own16·


· ·personal situation precluded that between the time the17·


· ·order came out and this particular setting, so I was not18·


· ·able to do that, as I said.19·


· · · · · · ·My computer just -- my wife's computer will20·


· ·not access whatever it takes to get into the law library21·


· ·and the Tacoma (inaudible.)··Pierce County library22·


· ·doesn't have anything --23·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··There are two, I24·


· ·think, references to set-aside programs in the code, and25·
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· ·one of those is related to whether the right can be·1·


· ·forfeited while it's in a set-aside program.··And the·2·


· ·code says that a water right cannot be forfeited.··Of·3·


· ·course, this is a permit, so I don't think that·4·


· ·forfeiture is a legal theory that would apply to a·5·


· ·permit.·6·


· · · · · · ·The other provision of law is that extensions·7·


· ·of time can be granted during the tenancy of that·8·


· ·enrollment in a federal set-aside program, so that the·9·


· ·permit is somehow not lost because of failure of ability10·


· ·to submit the proof of beneficial use during the11·


· ·development period.12·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Well, I appreciate that13·


· ·explanation, and I was suspecting that probably there14·


· ·was something like that, that is why I wanted to do the15·


· ·research and I was unable to do so.··I do think,16·


· ·however, that the permit itself, as it existed at the17·


· ·time when the drilling permit was not considered or18·


· ·whatever and which continues under its provisions, does19·


· ·constitute a water right of a nature.20·


· · · · · · ·Sure, it's not been developed, true, but at21·


· ·the same time I was not in a legal position.··I was22·


· ·precluded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a23·


· ·complete development.··And to me that is sort of an24·


· ·inconsistency, that is, when I'm going ahead with25·
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· ·inconsistency, as far as saying, Hey, you have got to·1·


· ·develop this, when I can't get a well permit, a drilling·2·


· ·permit to proceed by reason of the adoption of the·3·


· ·moratorium code.·4·


· · · · · · ·And that inconsistency to me is what I have·5·


· ·been trying to do in the meantime.··I have always wanted·6·


· ·to develop it, but at the same time I couldn't let the·7·


· ·land just sit there and go to weeds.··I had to do·8·


· ·something about it.··And putting it into grasses was a·9·


· ·benefit to everyone.··It produces a little bit of10·


· ·revenue for me and at the same time produced a benefit11·


· ·to the general public, as far as providing some very12·


· ·good area for grouse and other wildlife.13·


· · · · · · ·Personally, actually in looking at the grass14·


· ·that was given to me -- and I know we talked about this15·


· ·at the informal conference at one time as to whether16·


· ·this particular ground actually lies within that Blue17·


· ·Lakes groundwater curtailment area or not.··And18·


· ·physically I can't tell from the map because I know how19·


· ·far that particular boundary is marked on the map, and20·


· ·we discussed the fact that it's not a good marking21·


· ·described.22·


· · · · · · ·I don't know what the description is when it23·


· ·was described because I haven't acquired actually any24·


· ·reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line25·
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· ·or whatever it is exists at that particular point.·1·


· · · · · · ·I know that my land is located in the·2·


· ·southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31·3·


· ·in Township 6 (inaudible) Range 31 east, and that is it.·4·


· ·But regardless, it's close, there is no question about·5·


· ·it.·6·


· · · · · · ·But I still think that -- and that is why I'm·7·


· ·talking about mitigation and continues conditions,·8·


· ·because the one condition that needs to be alleviated in·9·


· ·this particular order, now that the ownership question10·


· ·has been started, is what is required to be able to11·


· ·allow me to hire a driller so that I can put the land12·


· ·into cultivation as was contemplated at the time and13·


· ·would have been done had I not had the one well driller14·


· ·quit on me after I had acquired the (inaudible) to15·


· ·proceed, and then the other guy commit a fraud against16·


· ·me with respect to it before getting that done.··And so17·


· ·that is all that I could do in the meantime, and that I18·


· ·guess is exactly where I am.19·


· · · · · · ·I believe that when this land goes back, I20·


· ·don't know whether there is a farmer who is interested21·


· ·in trying to put this very small tract of land into dry22·


· ·farm again in the lava rocks where it exists, because23·


· ·there are some good piles of rock in there that are24·


· ·within a few inches of the surface.··It's very marginal25·
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· ·land, but it was borderline marginal.··And so when the·1·


· ·County had to pick it out, this is one they took off of·2·


· ·the program.·3·


· · · · · · ·At the same time as I financed, the big·4·


· ·finance on what was in existence at the time that I·5·


· ·signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the·6·


· ·acquisition of another farm that I have, which was·7·


· ·basically my retirement from what little monies I had.·8·


· · · · · · ·I also came out of a litigation, a litigation·9·


· ·which I was not involved, but when some parties got a10·


· ·judgment on a farm that is located on the Power County11·


· ·and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within12·


· ·Power County, and that was in existence.13·


· · · · · · ·And in order to acquire I had to put this14·


· ·particular farm up with my water right on it to15·


· ·sufficiently finance the acquisition of that land.··And16·


· ·I did have a farmer engaged in partnership on it, and he17·


· ·ran into his financial problems and had to back out and18·


· ·I had to buy him out of that one as well.19·


· · · · · · ·So in the meantime I finally paid off Farm20·


· ·Credit, as I said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but I kind of21·


· ·paid off on both farms at that point in time.··And I'm22·


· ·now looking at what I can do to find something to do23·


· ·with this particular farm there, this small farm in24·


· ·Pleasant Valley.25·
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· · · · · · ·And I think that hopefully these type of·1·


· ·things do fall within the provisions of what the·2·


· ·Department operates under, as far as alleviating the·3·


· ·conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as I·4·


· ·said, as of October 1, 2007.·5·


· · · · · · ·That is why when I put in the request·6·


· ·originally, I thought I could get it in within one year,·7·


· ·knowing that I still have to get an extension of power·8·


· ·to reach that particular ground.··It's about a quarter·9·


· ·of a mile of extension of line.··Not knowing what Idaho10·


· ·Power's current situation is, I thought maybe I should11·


· ·figure on a three-year plan.12·


· · · · · · ·The rules still provide, of course, that you13·


· ·try to get started within what first year, and that is14·


· ·what I would like to do, even if it took a little longer15·


· ·to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm16·


· ·itself.··That is where I am.17·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.18·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··If there are any questions, I am19·


· ·certainly glad to answer them, as far as some of the20·


· ·specifics, or if you need further documentation.··I21·


· ·agree with you that, why on a couple of times Mr. Hill22·


· ·proceeded with where he did and then didn't.23·


· ·(Inaudible) the other, I don't know.24·


· · · · · · ·But they would change their offices from25·
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· ·Blackfoot, where I normally was doing things, to Idaho·1·


· ·Falls, and I didn't get to see him very often during·2·


· ·that time, but he didn't come down to see me either·3·


· ·because I was making my payments.·4·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··John, there is some·5·


· ·questions that, I guess, I have, and they have to do·6·


· ·more with the basis for your challenge and the legal·7·


· ·grounds that you may argue are the basis for the·8·


· ·Department allowing you to go forward.·9·


· · · · · · ·So I guess I would like to go back through the10·


· ·information that we have, and try to pinpoint and11·


· ·identify the times and where you think the Department12·


· ·has done something that it's either not authorized to do13·


· ·or that at some juncture the Department should let go of14·


· ·where we are at.15·


· · · · · · ·So, as I see this record, the permit was16·


· ·issued to you in July -- on July 27, 1990.17·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes, even though I had put the18·


· ·permit in in 1984, during that period of time -- well,19·


· ·it didn't appear here -- there was some communications20·


· ·about the first well driller.··He didn't get his work21·


· ·done when that got off, that was communicated to the22·


· ·Department, and there was no letter in here reflecting23·


· ·that, even a notation of the conversation that I had24·


· ·with the Department, they were made aware of it.··And I25·
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· ·was told -- and I think that is contained in a·1·


· ·application that I was told not to be concerned with·2·


· ·because they weren't doing any processing by reason of·3·


· ·the water hearings.··And at that particular time they·4·


· ·were not doing any processing of permits to actually go·5·


· ·ahead and issue them in '84, '85.·6·


· · · · · · ··But, of course, as I said at that time had I·7·


· ·not had my problems in that aspect, I would have them·8·


· ·all and we wouldn't be here where we are today.··That is·9·


· ·what I'm talking about mitigation in that particular10·


· ·regard.11·


· · · · · · ·I do think that I had in 1990 when I was12·


· ·right, the right to get a well permit.··I think that was13·


· ·an existing right at that time.··But that existing right14·


· ·I think was then taken away from me when I caught15·


· ·mention of the statutes.··That is the way I feel about16·


· ·how that interpetation should be.17·


· · · · · · ·And when the limitation came in and it said:18·


· ·Fine, this is going to expire in 1997, I didn't think19·


· ·about it because 1997 was when my contract was up on the20·


· ·CRP contract.··And so at that time I thought:··Fine, I21·


· ·can just go ahead.··And then at one point thereafter I22·


· ·didn't get ahold of the orders that Mr. Hill proceeded,23·


· ·I wasn't involved, and that is why we had that mixup24·


· ·about ownership that I didn't think was going to be25·
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· ·filed, was not aware of it until we got into these·1·


· ·proceedings where we are today.··I guess basically that·2·


· ·is about the best I can do at this point in time.·3·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, we could go·4·


· ·back and probably recreate a record of why the·5·


· ·application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.·6·


· ·And I suspect that that documentation probably would·7·


· ·show that there were orders and restrictions that were·8·


· ·put in place for the processing of the applications,·9·


· ·would fall within what was called trust water area, and10·


· ·there was an ongoing lawsuit with Idaho Power and the11·


· ·Swan Falls agreement that was signed.12·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I never had any notice of any of13·


· ·those proceedings or any information to that regard.··I14·


· ·went through my old file, because I did have the old15·


· ·file with my old permit, and there was nothing in there16·


· ·to that extent.17·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, I don't find18·


· ·any of that here, except I did find some correspondence19·


· ·from Tim Luke in the, I think, early 1990s.20·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.··There was some21·


· ·correspondence from him when he sent me a copy of the22·


· ·'93 order or '92, as I remember it.··I would have to go23·


· ·back and look.24·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··There shouldn't be25·
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· ·-- this is '94, 1990, so --·1·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.·2·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··During the Swan·3·


· ·Falls litigation, Department approval may have been·4·


· ·delayed.··The Department is presently reviewing your·5·


· ·application.·6·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I do have that letter.·7·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And that is the·8·


· ·first indication, at least looking at this, so I think·9·


· ·what I would want to do is start with the date the10·


· ·permit was issued, because it was issued, it had a first11·


· ·priority date of October 4, 1984, which would be the12·


· ·date of filing.··And so that below, other than perhaps13·


· ·now in retrospect looking back on it, if you had hurried14·


· ·to develop -- I'm not sure you could have.··It probably15·


· ·was held up by Swan Falls anyway.16·


· · · · · · ·So this was issued, and then following the17·


· ·issuance of that the Department issued an order in 1994,18·


· ·subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed19·


· ·the development under this permit.20·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Correct.21·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Now, you contest22·


· ·that particular order; is that correct?23·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.··I don't think -- because24·


· ·that stay, in effect, says you have to have a well25·
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· ·drilling permit, which my permit did not require at the·1·


· ·time -- well, it did have, but it says that my permit·2·


· ·said I could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that time·3·


· ·it was granted in '84.·4·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.·5·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··But yes, I know they changed that·6·


· ·and put the well drillers into a filing, not being able·7·


· ·to do any work, but they adopted the well driller code·8·


· ·in '87.··But I think that the effect of that -- and·9·


· ·that's, again, I honestly believe, I don't know from a10·


· ·legal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or11·


· ·anything during this whole entire period of time and not12·


· ·having had any of the notices because of that very13·


· ·complicated hearing, I know there were a lot other14·


· ·people who did get notices from the Department, but I15·


· ·didn't, so I didn't know where I stood as far as that16·


· ·goes.17·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, I do want to18·


· ·refer you to Idaho Code Section 42-1805, and this is19·


· ·subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805.··And this is a code20·


· ·section that is titled "Additional Duties" and describes21·


· ·some of the duties that have been delegated by the22·


· ·legislature to the director of the Department of Water23·


· ·Resources.24·


· · · · · · ·It says:··"The director shall have the25·
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· ·following powers and duties in subparagraph 7."··It·1·


· ·says:··"After notice to suspend the issuance where·2·


· ·further action on permits or applications that is·3·


· ·necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to·4·


· ·ensure compliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42·5·


· ·Idaho Code."·6·


· · · · · · ·So at least here in this code section it·7·


· ·grants the director the authority to stop the·8·


· ·development under permits that had been issued to·9·


· ·people.10·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··When was that adopted, if I may11·


· ·ask?12·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, I would have13·


· ·to go back through --14·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··It should show at the bottom of15·


· ·the page, I think.16·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Sure.··Yeah.··I17·


· ·don't know -- I don't know how many amendments have been18·


· ·produced.··There are several here.19·


· · · · · · ·Why don't I just show you.··You could look20·


· ·through those annotations or the history right at the21·


· ·bottom and there are several amendments.··So I don't22·


· ·know whether that was added and when.··We could go back23·


· ·through, I guess, the section once and it's possible.24·


· ·We could get you a copy of that if you want, John.25·
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· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That's all right.··I do intend to·1·


· ·figure out somehow how I can get into it, but --·2·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Certainly the·3·


· ·Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have a vehicle·4·


· ·here with you today.·5·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No, I do not, or I would have·6·


· ·gone over.··I have to get back right away.··Let's not·7·


· ·take any more time with the hearing now and I'll just·8·


· ·look at this after we are through, if I may.·9·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Yeah, that is fine.10·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··If you have another question I11·


· ·can --12·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Yeah.··I guess13·


· ·beyond that then, the order was issued in 2005.··And14·


· ·then you received a notice that proof was due, and we15·


· ·issued an extension of time when you requested it.··And16·


· ·by my reading, that extension extended the time for17·


· ·proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order.··That18·


· ·is the way I read this, because the 2005 order -- let me19·


· ·look back.··I was looking in the wrong place.20·


· · · · · · ·By the way, this order actually quotes at the21·


· ·time it was issued in 1995, Section 43-1805,22·


· ·subparagraph 7.··So it apparently was in place at the23·


· ·time this order was issued.24·


· · · · · · ·But this order said at the -- this is 1994,25·
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· ·I'm sorry.··I meant to look at the 1995 order.·1·


· · · · · · ·The order that I'm referring to is an April·2·


· ·4th -- is dated April 4th, 1995.··And the last condition·3·


· ·under the order portion of the document states:··"This·4·


· ·order does not grant a stay in development beyond·5·


· ·December 31st, 1997."··Now, that language could be·6·


· ·interpreted a couple of ways.··One way I guess it could·7·


· ·be interpreted is that the stay in development is -- or·8·


· ·the stay is finished and that the period of time for·9·


· ·development starts to run again.10·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That is what I thought it meant,11·


· ·because when it talked about well drilling expiring in12·


· ·'97, in fact, I thought by 1997 I could put into it,13·


· ·then I found out I couldn't.14·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, the request15·


· ·for extension of time we approved also said proof of16·


· ·beneficial use needed to be submitted by December 31st,17·


· ·1997.··Now, usually that setup, I guess, is a physical18·


· ·impossibility because a stay was in place, and this is19·


· ·the inconsistency, but we required the filing of proof20·


· ·which couldn't be because there was a stay.21·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··And still cannot.22·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··And you had a CRP23·


· ·contract (inaudible).24·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That's correct.25·
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· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So then there was a·1·


· ·second request for an extension of time that you filed.·2·


· ·And this actually was filed, I think it's signed by·3·


· ·Richard Hill.·4·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··That's correct.··He filed one in·5·


· ·December, and I filed a different one separately myself,·6·


· ·and I can't remember when I got it filed.··I filed one·7·


· ·on my own, and I didn't see a copy of that, as I recall,·8·


· ·in the papers I received.··I filed one, paid a $50 fee·9·


· ·asking to go till 2006, and there is a letter in there10·


· ·telling me it was approved for the end of 2004, and I11·


· ·had requested to 2006.··And I didn't see that in that12·


· ·particular file.··Maybe it's me, because there was so13·


· ·much paper to go through trying to figure out in the14·


· ·copying process what fit where.15·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··So what I16·


· ·have at least, and I'll try to reconcile those dates,17·


· ·but what I have is, I have an extension of time that was18·


· ·approved until December 31st, 1997.··Then I have another19·


· ·one that extended the time for development for another20·


· ·five years, and this was based on the CRP enrollment,21·


· ·until, December 1, 2002.··And then I have another one22·


· ·that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the23·


· ·time for proof of beneficial use until December 1, 2007.24·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··There is one other one that Mr.25·
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· ·Hill filed.·1·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Well, it was·2·


· ·jointly filed.·3·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Okay.·4·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:· ·So there is a dual·5·


· ·signature on this one.·6·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yeah, I remember he contacted me·7·


· ·at some point in time during that period of time, even·8·


· ·though I didn't have much remitting on my contract·9·


· ·there.10·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··But this extended11·


· ·the date for submittal of proof until December 1, 2007.12·


· ·At that point in time you filed another request for13·


· ·extension of time, and that is what prompted the14·


· ·December 6, 2007 order from those signed by Jeff.15·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yeah.··I think there is a letter16·


· ·in there that shows that when I was concerned about the17·


· ·2007, which was the then end of my CRP contract.··I18·


· ·originally had thought it was 2006 when I put in one19·


· ·request.20·


· · · · · · ·But anyway, I stopped in in September of 200021·


· ·and was unable to get -- because the computers weren't22·


· ·working that day that I was in there.··Talking with the23·


· ·one lady, and then they sent me the information that24·


· ·said:··Here this is what you need to do with the25·
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· ·extension request, which I filled out at that particular·1·


· ·point in time, yes.·2·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So you are not·3·


· ·contesting the issuance of these extensions of time.·4·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No, not at all.·5·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··They are documents·6·


· ·that extend the permit --·7·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Just how it affects me, and that·8·


· ·is the inconsistency that I talked about between, Hey,·9·


· ·there is no way I could ever comply with that until I am10·


· ·able to drill a well and put the water on it.11·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So are you12·


· ·contesting the ability of the Department now to issue13·


· ·another order continuing the indefinite stay in the14·


· ·development period?15·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes, because at this particular16·


· ·point in time I can alleviate it, and that precludes me17·


· ·from being able to drill a well and convert it to what18·


· ·it was originally intended.19·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.··All right.20·


· ·Well, I understand the arguments.··And I don't know that21·


· ·we need to go over anything else.··Is there anything22·


· ·that else that you want to discuss with us?23·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··No.··That concludes what I have24·


· ·and what I know at this particular point in time.··I do25·
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· ·appreciate the chance to let me look at your code·1·


· ·sections here for a few minutes.·2·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Yeah.·3·


· · · · · · ·Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at·4·


· ·this point?·5·


· · · · · · ·MR. PEPPERSACK:··No.·6·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··All right.·7·


· ·Thank you.·8·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··I just hope I've come up with the·9·


· ·showing that conditions will be alleviated as is set10·


· ·forth, as against what is in -- and do that which I have11·


· ·not been able to do.··And that this insignificant12·


· ·consumption aspect is material to you and that you are13·


· ·able to find something from a mitigation standpoint as a14·


· ·result of my particular problems in this particular15·


· ·relevant time.16·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··And the17·


· ·current period of CRP enrollment expires when?18·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··September 30th, 2009.19·


· · · · · · ·On October 1 I can start to put water in, and20·


· ·I have been given permission to drill a well on it.21·


· ·That is only oral, I don't have it in writing, from the22·


· ·Department with the Power County agent.23·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··You say by the24·


· ·Department, you are talking about someone from Power25·
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· ·County.·1·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Yes.··The Department of·2·


· ·Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.·3·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.·4·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··He has authorized me, to say you·5·


· ·can put a well on it, but you cannot develop, further·6·


· ·development at this time.·7·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··So he says you can·8·


· ·put a well on when?·9·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Now.··I can put one on tomorrow.10·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··That doesn't11·


· ·violate the terms of the CRP.12·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··He says it will not violate the13·


· ·terms in this last year of concern.··He said, You can't14·


· ·put water on it because that would be a violation.15·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Okay.··Very good.16·


· ·Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,17·


· ·nice to see you again.18·


· · · · · · ·MR. KUGLER:··Tell Debby thank you for19·


· ·arranging to have that proceeding right here.··I didn't20·


· ·even know it existed, and to accommodate me as far as21·


· ·time so I can get down and back in a day.22·


· · · · · · ·HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:··Sure.··Very good.23·


· ·Okay.··We'll close the record.··Thanks.24·


· · · · · · ·(End of audio tape.)25·
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· · · · · ··I further certify that I am not a relative or10·


· ·employee of any attorney or party, nor am I financially11·


· ·interested in the action.12·
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          1               (Start of audio tape.)

          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We are

          3     recording.  This is the time and place set for a hearing

          4     regarding an order titled, "Order Continuing the

          5     Indefinite Stay in Development Period," signed by the

          6     Department in December 2007, signed by Jeff Peppersack,

          7     Bureau Chief Water Allocation Bureau.  And it's in the

          8     matter of permit No. 35-8359 in the name of John B.

          9     Kugler, and at the time I think it listed Northwest Farm

         10     Credit Services as well.

         11               It seems to me that Northwest Farm Credit

         12     Services is no longer involved; or is that correct, Mr.

         13     Kugler?

         14               MR. KUGLER:  That is correct.  They should

         15     have filed the fact that I paid the mortgage off back in

         16     2003, but they didn't do that, or 2004.  But they have

         17     filed it now, so it's in my name alone at this point in

         18     time and they have no interest in the property.

         19               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I'm not sure we

         20     have that change.

         21               MR. KUGLER:  It's all there.

         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  We did have

         23     you sign.  So that has come in since then, this was

         24     dated January 28th.

         25               MR. KUGLER:  That part has been accepted now
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          1     by the Department.

          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  That was January

          3     28th, and I didn't look at the records, but I assume

          4     they've been changed.  So our records should reflect

          5     that this is now in the name of John B. Kugler, and the

          6     case caption will be titled an amended so that you are

          7     the sole owner of this permit shown in our records.

          8               MR. KUGLER:  Along with my wife.

          9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Oh, okay.

         10               MR. KUGLER:  But I don't remember how it got

         11     deeded back to me.

         12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  It doesn't show

         13     that in the assignment.  So I don't know how that is

         14     shown, but we'll probably just have to list it the way

         15     it is in the permit for the Department.

         16               MR. KUGLER:  That may be in my name alone.  I

         17     don't recall.  Since then I've gotten the original.

         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I suspect it is.

         19               MR. KUGLER:  I've got "John B. or" on the

         20     original.

         21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  We don't normally

         22     have -- well, the notice of prehearing conference shows

         23     it in Kugler's name, in John's name.

         24               MR. KUGLER:  And/or Diane K., at my request.

         25     I put it that way, what I faxed in, because I excluded
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          1     it in my own typing on my request for reconsideration

          2     that Northwest had no interest.  And I just raised it as

          3     an exception (inaudible).

          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  I have this

          5     request from you.  Let's see, reconsider its finding,

          6     should we go down this path I've been anticipating.

          7     Just that we normally issue something that is, other

          8     than that we've changed.

          9               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.  I think we should base

         10     it completely on the assignment trail.  So the

         11     assignment was just in John's name and that's as far as

         12     it went.

         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  My guess is that

         14     that is the way our records show because that is the way

         15     the assignment is.  I was looking for something else

         16     that might have changed that, and I don't see it here.

         17               So anyway, that is probably something you may

         18     want to address later, John, if --

         19               MR. KUGLER:  I would -- you don't need to.

         20     I'm making a note to myself in regard to that request of

         21     time.

         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it may require

         23     that you assign the permit to you and your wife.

         24               MR. KUGLER:  If I do that, I will get

         25     Northwest to execute another transfer document.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I think Northwest

          2     has fully assigned the permit to you.

          3               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.

          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So I think at least

          5     we would recognize you as the sole owner of the permit

          6     now.  So I think it just --

          7               MR. KUGLER:  The only one that I would upset

          8     is my wife.  (Laughter.)

          9               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And it probably may

         10     or may not be community property.  I don't know.

         11               MR. KUGLER:  It definitely is community

         12     property.

         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I don't know what

         14     the state of Washington is.

         15               MR. KUGLER:  Exactly, Washington is a

         16     community property state, one of the eight.

         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  All right.  So,

         18     again, we are here.  The order was issued in November of

         19     2007.  And in response to service of the order upon him,

         20     or upon you, John, you requested reconsideration and a

         21     hearing.  That request for hearing was granted.

         22               We conducted the prehearing conference, but we

         23     met with you and talked about the facts and some of the

         24     background related to this.  And then I wrote a letter

         25     to you that essentially confirmed our opinion that the
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          1     order would stand, and so we went forward with the

          2     hearing, and that is why we are here today.

          3               MR. KUGLER:  I understand, yes.

          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And before we began

          5     the recording, we discussed the way in which we would

          6     proceed.  Again, this is not necessarily a contested

          7     case hearing because we don't have two parties.  The

          8     Department has issued a decision.  This is an

          9     opportunity for you, John, to present evidence for the

         10     Department to consider in looking at everything again.

         11     And then the Department will issue ultimately a decision

         12     based on the record that is provided today.

         13               And I do want to mention for the record that

         14     Mr. Kugler has received copies of all the documents that

         15     are contained in the file.  And I have reviewed those

         16     documents and will consider the documents that are

         17     contained therein in ultimately writing a preliminary

         18     order for this matter.

         19               And I'm sure, John, you have some additional

         20     documents that you want to offer today.

         21               MR. KUGLER:  I did not bring any documents.

         22     The order required that I provide them to you in

         23     advance, so I have not brought any documents.  I would

         24     like to testify in the narrative, if I may.

         25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That is
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          1     permitted, and I would be willing to allow you to offer

          2     something if you have it.  So I don't see a procedural

          3     problem with that at this point.

          4               I want to acknowledge today that Jeff

          5     Peppersack is assisting me today in this hearing.  And I

          6     also want to call attention to some documents that may

          7     not be here but are referred to in the Order Continuing

          8     the Indefinite Stay in Development Period.

          9               There are a couple of documents that I think

         10     are important.  Our orders issued by the Department that

         11     are referred to as "moratorium orders" that were issued

         12     to all water right holders.  I have at least two

         13     applicants that are -- there are two applicants whose

         14     filings are pending, and those are referred to.  There

         15     is a May 15, 1992 order and, again, an April 30, 1993

         16     order that was issued.

         17               So anyway, with that background, John, I don't

         18     have anything else to add as a preliminary matter.  Do

         19     you have anything you want to say before you have an

         20     opportunity to testify?

         21               MR. KUGLER:  No, sir.

         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, if you would

         23     stand please, John, and raise your right-hand.

         24

         25     ///
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          1                           JOHN B. KUGLER,

          2     first duly sworn to tell the truth relating to said

          3     cause, testified as follows:

          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Thank you.  Please

          5     be seated.

          6               As we discussed before, you may narrate your

          7     testimony and we'll see where we go from there.

          8               MR. KUGLER:  Thank you, Mr. Spackman.

          9               This particular property came to me as a part

         10     of a particular problem in the development of doing an

         11     estate for a person because it was owned prior to my

         12     acquisition by about 13 different heirs, and the farmer

         13     who had been farming the particular property did not

         14     want to buy it at its appraised value.

         15               And so when one or two of the heirs insisted

         16     that they would like to get their value out of it

         17     percentage-wise, I spoke with the majority heir that was

         18     involved, one of them had over a third interest of it,

         19     and advised her that if she wanted to sell at any

         20     particular time -- but I felt it ought to always go for

         21     at least the appraised value and I would buy the odd

         22     share so that she didn't have a particular problem in

         23     covering on it.  She could acquire it from me if she

         24     wished.  And that was done and that is what started it.

         25               And a couple years -- within that particular
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          1     first couple of years, in the early '80s -- actually,

          2     no, it was late '70s, she decided that she wanted to

          3     sell hers as well.  And at that point in time I acquired

          4     all of the property and took out a loan from Farm Credit

          5     Services for the purchase price that I needed to come up

          6     with to acquire the land.

          7               That farm was being farmed at the time the

          8     heir died by one farmer.  And when she decided to sell,

          9     he decided he no longer wanted to farm the land.  And I

         10     found another farmer who would rent the property and

         11     produce a little bit of funds, as far as income to the

         12     property was concerned.  That was a man by the name of

         13     Melvin Funk.

         14               Melvin, in the early '80s, got into his own

         15     particular financial problems, and in 1983 he told me he

         16     could no longer and would no longer attempt to farm the

         17     land, by reason of the fact that it was not very

         18     productive.  He was getting very low yields.  Even when

         19     he was farming it, he would be lucky to get 15 to 18

         20     bushels of wheat off of the ground.  As a result, he was

         21     taking a good share of that.

         22               I decided that I would, because I had the loan

         23     almost paid off and Farm Credit said they would give me

         24     a loan for development, I put in for the purpose of

         25     developing the water in 1984, and the application was
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          1     filed.

          2               At that same time when I was looking for a

          3     well driller, I found a driller, a young man who had

          4     been drilling, working for somebody else for quite a

          5     while.  And he indicated that he would go ahead and

          6     drill for me if I would buy the drilling rig, and he

          7     would pay me for any money back, but if I would pay him

          8     a particular rate for his time involved in the drilling.

          9               I bought a drill rig that was found and

         10     located for $12,000.  And then we discovered that the

         11     bits that came with it were insufficient, so I went out

         12     and purchased a little larger bit, drill bit as

         13     required, so we would have a 16-inch hole, and that cost

         14     me an additional $1,600, and then I had some

         15     miscellaneous expenses.  So I was into that at about

         16     13.5.

         17               And at that point in time, in 1984, I didn't

         18     have to have a drilling permit, nor did he.  But the

         19     young man then decided that he wanted to do something

         20     else and was not interested in drilling.  I then found

         21     another individual who was an established well driller

         22     who said he would drill it and take it over if I would

         23     give him the drill at the end of the period when he

         24     finished.  I indicated to him that I would do so.

         25              However, in 1987, 1988, he never got around to
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          1     doing it.  And, of course, in 1987 one was then required

          2     to get a drilling permit before one could proceed with

          3     that stage of the development.

          4               As a result of him not getting it done, I put

          5     the land into CRP in 1986, because I was getting no

          6     yield and nothing from the ground, and it was developing

          7     into some weed problems out there that was a concern to

          8     both me and to Power County weed control people.

          9               So I put it in there and took care of the

         10     weeds and put it into the CRP program.  In the meantime,

         11     I discovered that that particular well driller had not

         12     only not gone forward with what he indicated to do, but

         13     he had actually stolen the well drilling machine and

         14     sold it.  So he was unable to even go forward with it.

         15               I found another driller in 1990 who indicated

         16     that he would go ahead, contacted the power company to

         17     see about them running a line out to that particular

         18     farm area, which is located in the western part of Power

         19     County and close to the lava rocks, and he was now going

         20     to begin.

         21               And Idaho Power Company told me that at that

         22     point in time they required a two- or three-year

         23     planning stage before they could even consider extending

         24     it.  So when I talked with the well driller about that,

         25     he withdrew his willingness to go forward.
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          1               This continued through this particular period.

          2     And, of course, I did receive the order indicating in

          3     1992, I believe it was, I think it was the April 30 --

          4     May 15, '92, or that one, about needing the well

          5     drilling permit in going forward and was advised at that

          6     time about its expiration in 1997, as far as some of

          7     that was concerned.

          8               Anyway, it continued in the CRP program

          9     through that period of time.  And when I got a notice

         10     about trying to put in the proof of completion and

         11     development, I was unable to do so because I couldn't

         12     get a well drilled and I couldn't put any water on the

         13     land because of the CRP.  The ground remained again and

         14     was put into CRP in 19 -- actually in 1996.  The

         15     Department of Agriculture extended it for one year on

         16     their own and then sought new applications in 1997,

         17     which they extended then for a ten-year period expiring

         18     in 2007.

         19               At one point during that period of time I

         20     filed my own application for extension of time for

         21     completion of work and asked that it be extended through

         22     2006, because that was my recollection of when the

         23     current contract had been excluded, and then determined

         24     afterwards that it came out to 2007.

         25               But as I recall, the Department only granted
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          1     me to 2004.  And that particular determination, when I

          2     put in for that permit, I didn't go through the

          3     Department of Water Resources, because when I had given

          4     them the financing agreement to begin with, it was only

          5     going to go for five years, which then it's supposed to

          6     be renewed, and I had never renewed it with them.

          7               Of course, even after that, in 1994, I never

          8     did receive the order direct from -- the first one on

          9     February 4 from the Department, but Farm Credit sent it

         10     to me and that is when I put in an application as to

         11     that period of time.

         12               But the farm has been in CRP continuously.

         13     Power County wanted it in there for a couple of reasons

         14     that I indicated early to begin with, until 2007.  And

         15     before it got through to 2007, and early 2007, they

         16     extended it for two more years, through 2009.

         17               As of this date that extension order which

         18     existed, will not be reconsidered.  It didn't require

         19     anything by me to get that through to 2007 except to pay

         20     them a small fee for a redetermination of acreage, which

         21     had some new aerial photos.  But they wanted to do that

         22     through that period of time, and I think that had to do

         23     with something with county allotments.

         24               But at the present time the county allotment

         25     is going to be reduced, I gather, and they will not
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          1     renew it.  So come October of 2007 -- or 2009, this

          2     year, I will then be able to alleviate the problem with

          3     being able to consider the development and complete

          4     development of the acreage as I now require.

          5               The order that was issued, of course, in

          6     granting the extension through 2007, in effect,

          7     precludes me from drilling.  And obviously I cannot put

          8     water on, although I have been given oral permission by

          9     the County Department of Agriculture representative to

         10     put a well in at any time so that I can start to

         11     develop.

         12               I will not be able to put any water in, as

         13     indicated, until after October 1 of 2007.  But at that

         14     time I did find the prohibition against putting a well

         15     on the premises, as long as I don't put extensions and

         16     lines in for watering has been alleviated.

         17               Obviously when the other alleviation comes,

         18     then my only particular problem that I have, as far as

         19     being able to supply the completion of works, which the

         20     Department has been extending for quite some time, will

         21     be the problem of getting the permission of drilling a

         22     well, which did not exist at the time the permit was

         23     granted, but does now I guess exist, because I've been

         24     told recently, since December 17 -- or December 17th

         25     of -- or 21st, I guess, of this 2008, sometime during
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          1     2008, that if I requested a well drilling permit, it

          2     would not be issued.  I presumed that that is based on

          3     what I gather is being called the "ESPA moratorium."

          4               I believe with respect to that, that that ESPA

          5     moratorium came into effect after the granting of this

          6     permit, wherein I was permitted to drill a well without

          7     acquiring a well drilling permit.  I also believe that

          8     the moratorium basically operated as an interference

          9     with an existing right, which I think was precluded by

         10     Section 42-1374(F) of the Idaho Code.

         11               If I gather from the findings, it has been

         12     determined by the Department that the consumption that I

         13     requested for is insignificant.

         14               MR. PEPPERSACK:  John, what is the code

         15     section again that you referred to?

         16               MR. KUGLER:  42-1374(F).  That was a basic one

         17     in the original powers of the Department.  I don't have

         18     access to and could not get access to any supplements or

         19     anything else as far as that code section is concerned.

         20     So I don't know --

         21               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  I have a code book

         22     here and I don't find that.  I don't find a section that

         23     is numbered that high.

         24               MR. KUGLER:  Well, that was in on old book of

         25     mine, and I suspect it was deleted when they adopted the
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          1     new code section.  As I said, I didn't have access to

          2     the Idaho Code.

          3               I would have to go back and -- whenever the

          4     new section was involved.  I do understand from -- I

          5     talked with somebody else that had been involved with

          6     waters that there was another statute adopted at one

          7     time that had to do with preservation of rights.  And I

          8     don't know what that code section is because of my lack

          9     of being able to access any authority on it.

         10               It had to do with, as I understand, including

         11     probably some sort of non-consumptive use, CRP type,

         12     which is what I was precluded from during this period of

         13     time, and other things in that regard, and I'm not sure

         14     what they are.

         15               I had planned to try to get to Pocatello prior

         16     to this hearing, and some other developments in my own

         17     personal situation precluded that between the time the

         18     order came out and this particular setting, so I was not

         19     able to do that, as I said.

         20               My computer just -- my wife's computer will

         21     not access whatever it takes to get into the law library

         22     and the Tacoma (inaudible.)  Pierce County library

         23     doesn't have anything --

         24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There are two, I

         25     think, references to set-aside programs in the code, and
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          1     one of those is related to whether the right can be

          2     forfeited while it's in a set-aside program.  And the

          3     code says that a water right cannot be forfeited.  Of

          4     course, this is a permit, so I don't think that

          5     forfeiture is a legal theory that would apply to a

          6     permit.

          7               The other provision of law is that extensions

          8     of time can be granted during the tenancy of that

          9     enrollment in a federal set-aside program, so that the

         10     permit is somehow not lost because of failure of ability

         11     to submit the proof of beneficial use during the

         12     development period.

         13               MR. KUGLER:  Well, I appreciate that

         14     explanation, and I was suspecting that probably there

         15     was something like that, that is why I wanted to do the

         16     research and I was unable to do so.  I do think,

         17     however, that the permit itself, as it existed at the

         18     time when the drilling permit was not considered or

         19     whatever and which continues under its provisions, does

         20     constitute a water right of a nature.

         21               Sure, it's not been developed, true, but at

         22     the same time I was not in a legal position.  I was

         23     precluded from doing that which was (inaudible) to a

         24     complete development.  And to me that is sort of an

         25     inconsistency, that is, when I'm going ahead with
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          1     inconsistency, as far as saying, Hey, you have got to

          2     develop this, when I can't get a well permit, a drilling

          3     permit to proceed by reason of the adoption of the

          4     moratorium code.

          5               And that inconsistency to me is what I have

          6     been trying to do in the meantime.  I have always wanted

          7     to develop it, but at the same time I couldn't let the

          8     land just sit there and go to weeds.  I had to do

          9     something about it.  And putting it into grasses was a

         10     benefit to everyone.  It produces a little bit of

         11     revenue for me and at the same time produced a benefit

         12     to the general public, as far as providing some very

         13     good area for grouse and other wildlife.

         14               Personally, actually in looking at the grass

         15     that was given to me -- and I know we talked about this

         16     at the informal conference at one time as to whether

         17     this particular ground actually lies within that Blue

         18     Lakes groundwater curtailment area or not.  And

         19     physically I can't tell from the map because I know how

         20     far that particular boundary is marked on the map, and

         21     we discussed the fact that it's not a good marking

         22     described.

         23               I don't know what the description is when it

         24     was described because I haven't acquired actually any

         25     reading on how it reads either, as far as a section line
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          1     or whatever it is exists at that particular point.

          2               I know that my land is located in the

          3     southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Section 31

          4     in Township 6 (inaudible) Range 31 east, and that is it.

          5     But regardless, it's close, there is no question about

          6     it.

          7               But I still think that -- and that is why I'm

          8     talking about mitigation and continues conditions,

          9     because the one condition that needs to be alleviated in

         10     this particular order, now that the ownership question

         11     has been started, is what is required to be able to

         12     allow me to hire a driller so that I can put the land

         13     into cultivation as was contemplated at the time and

         14     would have been done had I not had the one well driller

         15     quit on me after I had acquired the (inaudible) to

         16     proceed, and then the other guy commit a fraud against

         17     me with respect to it before getting that done.  And so

         18     that is all that I could do in the meantime, and that I

         19     guess is exactly where I am.

         20               I believe that when this land goes back, I

         21     don't know whether there is a farmer who is interested

         22     in trying to put this very small tract of land into dry

         23     farm again in the lava rocks where it exists, because

         24     there are some good piles of rock in there that are

         25     within a few inches of the surface.  It's very marginal
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          1     land, but it was borderline marginal.  And so when the

          2     County had to pick it out, this is one they took off of

          3     the program.

          4               At the same time as I financed, the big

          5     finance on what was in existence at the time that I

          6     signed the financing with Northwest Credit, was the

          7     acquisition of another farm that I have, which was

          8     basically my retirement from what little monies I had.

          9               I also came out of a litigation, a litigation

         10     which I was not involved, but when some parties got a

         11     judgment on a farm that is located on the Power County

         12     and Oneida County line or just north of it, all within

         13     Power County, and that was in existence.

         14               And in order to acquire I had to put this

         15     particular farm up with my water right on it to

         16     sufficiently finance the acquisition of that land.  And

         17     I did have a farmer engaged in partnership on it, and he

         18     ran into his financial problems and had to back out and

         19     I had to buy him out of that one as well.

         20               So in the meantime I finally paid off Farm

         21     Credit, as I said, 2003 or maybe 2004, but I kind of

         22     paid off on both farms at that point in time.  And I'm

         23     now looking at what I can do to find something to do

         24     with this particular farm there, this small farm in

         25     Pleasant Valley.
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          1               And I think that hopefully these type of

          2     things do fall within the provisions of what the

          3     Department operates under, as far as alleviating the

          4     conditions of the stay, which will be concluded, as I

          5     said, as of October 1, 2007.

          6               That is why when I put in the request

          7     originally, I thought I could get it in within one year,

          8     knowing that I still have to get an extension of power

          9     to reach that particular ground.  It's about a quarter

         10     of a mile of extension of line.  Not knowing what Idaho

         11     Power's current situation is, I thought maybe I should

         12     figure on a three-year plan.

         13               The rules still provide, of course, that you

         14     try to get started within what first year, and that is

         15     what I would like to do, even if it took a little longer

         16     to get the power toward the actual usage on the farm

         17     itself.  That is where I am.

         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.

         19               MR. KUGLER:  If there are any questions, I am

         20     certainly glad to answer them, as far as some of the

         21     specifics, or if you need further documentation.  I

         22     agree with you that, why on a couple of times Mr. Hill

         23     proceeded with where he did and then didn't.

         24     (Inaudible) the other, I don't know.

         25               But they would change their offices from
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          1     Blackfoot, where I normally was doing things, to Idaho

          2     Falls, and I didn't get to see him very often during

          3     that time, but he didn't come down to see me either

          4     because I was making my payments.

          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  John, there is some

          6     questions that, I guess, I have, and they have to do

          7     more with the basis for your challenge and the legal

          8     grounds that you may argue are the basis for the

          9     Department allowing you to go forward.

         10               So I guess I would like to go back through the

         11     information that we have, and try to pinpoint and

         12     identify the times and where you think the Department

         13     has done something that it's either not authorized to do

         14     or that at some juncture the Department should let go of

         15     where we are at.

         16               So, as I see this record, the permit was

         17     issued to you in July -- on July 27, 1990.

         18               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, even though I had put the

         19     permit in in 1984, during that period of time -- well,

         20     it didn't appear here -- there was some communications

         21     about the first well driller.  He didn't get his work

         22     done when that got off, that was communicated to the

         23     Department, and there was no letter in here reflecting

         24     that, even a notation of the conversation that I had

         25     with the Department, they were made aware of it.  And I
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          1     was told -- and I think that is contained in a

          2     application that I was told not to be concerned with

          3     because they weren't doing any processing by reason of

          4     the water hearings.  And at that particular time they

          5     were not doing any processing of permits to actually go

          6     ahead and issue them in '84, '85.

          7                But, of course, as I said at that time had I

          8     not had my problems in that aspect, I would have them

          9     all and we wouldn't be here where we are today.  That is

         10     what I'm talking about mitigation in that particular

         11     regard.

         12               I do think that I had in 1990 when I was

         13     right, the right to get a well permit.  I think that was

         14     an existing right at that time.  But that existing right

         15     I think was then taken away from me when I caught

         16     mention of the statutes.  That is the way I feel about

         17     how that interpetation should be.

         18               And when the limitation came in and it said:

         19     Fine, this is going to expire in 1997, I didn't think

         20     about it because 1997 was when my contract was up on the

         21     CRP contract.  And so at that time I thought:  Fine, I

         22     can just go ahead.  And then at one point thereafter I

         23     didn't get ahold of the orders that Mr. Hill proceeded,

         24     I wasn't involved, and that is why we had that mixup

         25     about ownership that I didn't think was going to be
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          1     filed, was not aware of it until we got into these

          2     proceedings where we are today.  I guess basically that

          3     is about the best I can do at this point in time.

          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, we could go

          5     back and probably recreate a record of why the

          6     application filed in 1984 was not processed until 1990.

          7     And I suspect that that documentation probably would

          8     show that there were orders and restrictions that were

          9     put in place for the processing of the applications,

         10     would fall within what was called trust water area, and

         11     there was an ongoing lawsuit with Idaho Power and the

         12     Swan Falls agreement that was signed.

         13               MR. KUGLER:  I never had any notice of any of

         14     those proceedings or any information to that regard.  I

         15     went through my old file, because I did have the old

         16     file with my old permit, and there was nothing in there

         17     to that extent.

         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I don't find

         19     any of that here, except I did find some correspondence

         20     from Tim Luke in the, I think, early 1990s.

         21               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  There was some

         22     correspondence from him when he sent me a copy of the

         23     '93 order or '92, as I remember it.  I would have to go

         24     back and look.

         25               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  There shouldn't be
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          1     -- this is '94, 1990, so --

          2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.

          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  During the Swan

          4     Falls litigation, Department approval may have been

          5     delayed.  The Department is presently reviewing your

          6     application.

          7               MR. KUGLER:  I do have that letter.

          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And that is the

          9     first indication, at least looking at this, so I think

         10     what I would want to do is start with the date the

         11     permit was issued, because it was issued, it had a first

         12     priority date of October 4, 1984, which would be the

         13     date of filing.  And so that below, other than perhaps

         14     now in retrospect looking back on it, if you had hurried

         15     to develop -- I'm not sure you could have.  It probably

         16     was held up by Swan Falls anyway.

         17               So this was issued, and then following the

         18     issuance of that the Department issued an order in 1994,

         19     subsequently issued another order in 1995 that stayed

         20     the development under this permit.

         21               MR. KUGLER:  Correct.

         22               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Now, you contest

         23     that particular order; is that correct?

         24               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  I don't think -- because

         25     that stay, in effect, says you have to have a well
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          1     drilling permit, which my permit did not require at the

          2     time -- well, it did have, but it says that my permit

          3     said I could go ahead and drill, in effect, at that time

          4     it was granted in '84.

          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.

          6               MR. KUGLER:  But yes, I know they changed that

          7     and put the well drillers into a filing, not being able

          8     to do any work, but they adopted the well driller code

          9     in '87.  But I think that the effect of that -- and

         10     that's, again, I honestly believe, I don't know from a

         11     legal standpoint, not being involved in water rights or

         12     anything during this whole entire period of time and not

         13     having had any of the notices because of that very

         14     complicated hearing, I know there were a lot other

         15     people who did get notices from the Department, but I

         16     didn't, so I didn't know where I stood as far as that

         17     goes.

         18               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I do want to

         19     refer you to Idaho Code Section 42-1805, and this is

         20     subparagraph No. 7 of 42-1805.  And this is a code

         21     section that is titled "Additional Duties" and describes

         22     some of the duties that have been delegated by the

         23     legislature to the director of the Department of Water

         24     Resources.

         25               It says:  "The director shall have the
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          1     following powers and duties in subparagraph 7."  It

          2     says:  "After notice to suspend the issuance where

          3     further action on permits or applications that is

          4     necessary to protect existing vested water rights or to

          5     ensure compliance with provision of Chapter 2, Title 42

          6     Idaho Code."

          7               So at least here in this code section it

          8     grants the director the authority to stop the

          9     development under permits that had been issued to

         10     people.

         11               MR. KUGLER:  When was that adopted, if I may

         12     ask?

         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, I would have

         14     to go back through --

         15               MR. KUGLER:  It should show at the bottom of

         16     the page, I think.

         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Yeah.  I

         18     don't know -- I don't know how many amendments have been

         19     produced.  There are several here.

         20               Why don't I just show you.  You could look

         21     through those annotations or the history right at the

         22     bottom and there are several amendments.  So I don't

         23     know whether that was added and when.  We could go back

         24     through, I guess, the section once and it's possible.

         25     We could get you a copy of that if you want, John.
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          1               MR. KUGLER:  That's all right.  I do intend to

          2     figure out somehow how I can get into it, but --

          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Certainly the

          4     Supreme Court -- of course, you don't have a vehicle

          5     here with you today.

          6               MR. KUGLER:  No, I do not, or I would have

          7     gone over.  I have to get back right away.  Let's not

          8     take any more time with the hearing now and I'll just

          9     look at this after we are through, if I may.

         10               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah, that is fine.

         11               MR. KUGLER:  If you have another question I

         12     can --

         13               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.  I guess

         14     beyond that then, the order was issued in 2005.  And

         15     then you received a notice that proof was due, and we

         16     issued an extension of time when you requested it.  And

         17     by my reading, that extension extended the time for

         18     proof being due to coincide with the 2005 order.  That

         19     is the way I read this, because the 2005 order -- let me

         20     look back.  I was looking in the wrong place.

         21               By the way, this order actually quotes at the

         22     time it was issued in 1995, Section 43-1805,

         23     subparagraph 7.  So it apparently was in place at the

         24     time this order was issued.

         25               But this order said at the -- this is 1994,
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          1     I'm sorry.  I meant to look at the 1995 order.

          2               The order that I'm referring to is an April

          3     4th -- is dated April 4th, 1995.  And the last condition

          4     under the order portion of the document states:  "This

          5     order does not grant a stay in development beyond

          6     December 31st, 1997."  Now, that language could be

          7     interpreted a couple of ways.  One way I guess it could

          8     be interpreted is that the stay in development is -- or

          9     the stay is finished and that the period of time for

         10     development starts to run again.

         11               MR. KUGLER:  That is what I thought it meant,

         12     because when it talked about well drilling expiring in

         13     '97, in fact, I thought by 1997 I could put into it,

         14     then I found out I couldn't.

         15               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, the request

         16     for extension of time we approved also said proof of

         17     beneficial use needed to be submitted by December 31st,

         18     1997.  Now, usually that setup, I guess, is a physical

         19     impossibility because a stay was in place, and this is

         20     the inconsistency, but we required the filing of proof

         21     which couldn't be because there was a stay.

         22               MR. KUGLER:  And still cannot.

         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  And you had a CRP

         24     contract (inaudible).

         25               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.
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          1               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So then there was a

          2     second request for an extension of time that you filed.

          3     And this actually was filed, I think it's signed by

          4     Richard Hill.

          5               MR. KUGLER:  That's correct.  He filed one in

          6     December, and I filed a different one separately myself,

          7     and I can't remember when I got it filed.  I filed one

          8     on my own, and I didn't see a copy of that, as I recall,

          9     in the papers I received.  I filed one, paid a $50 fee

         10     asking to go till 2006, and there is a letter in there

         11     telling me it was approved for the end of 2004, and I

         12     had requested to 2006.  And I didn't see that in that

         13     particular file.  Maybe it's me, because there was so

         14     much paper to go through trying to figure out in the

         15     copying process what fit where.

         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  So what I

         17     have at least, and I'll try to reconcile those dates,

         18     but what I have is, I have an extension of time that was

         19     approved until December 31st, 1997.  Then I have another

         20     one that extended the time for development for another

         21     five years, and this was based on the CRP enrollment,

         22     until, December 1, 2002.  And then I have another one

         23     that -- and you filed for this one, and it extended the

         24     time for proof of beneficial use until December 1, 2007.

         25               MR. KUGLER:  There is one other one that Mr.
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          1     Hill filed.

          2               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Well, it was

          3     jointly filed.

          4               MR. KUGLER:  Okay.

          5               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:   So there is a dual

          6     signature on this one.

          7               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah, I remember he contacted me

          8     at some point in time during that period of time, even

          9     though I didn't have much remitting on my contract

         10     there.

         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  But this extended

         12     the date for submittal of proof until December 1, 2007.

         13     At that point in time you filed another request for

         14     extension of time, and that is what prompted the

         15     December 6, 2007 order from those signed by Jeff.

         16               MR. KUGLER:  Yeah.  I think there is a letter

         17     in there that shows that when I was concerned about the

         18     2007, which was the then end of my CRP contract.  I

         19     originally had thought it was 2006 when I put in one

         20     request.

         21               But anyway, I stopped in in September of 2000

         22     and was unable to get -- because the computers weren't

         23     working that day that I was in there.  Talking with the

         24     one lady, and then they sent me the information that

         25     said:  Here this is what you need to do with the
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          1     extension request, which I filled out at that particular

          2     point in time, yes.

          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So you are not

          4     contesting the issuance of these extensions of time.

          5               MR. KUGLER:  No, not at all.

          6               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  They are documents

          7     that extend the permit --

          8               MR. KUGLER:  Just how it affects me, and that

          9     is the inconsistency that I talked about between, Hey,

         10     there is no way I could ever comply with that until I am

         11     able to drill a well and put the water on it.

         12               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So are you

         13     contesting the ability of the Department now to issue

         14     another order continuing the indefinite stay in the

         15     development period?

         16               MR. KUGLER:  Yes, because at this particular

         17     point in time I can alleviate it, and that precludes me

         18     from being able to drill a well and convert it to what

         19     it was originally intended.

         20               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN: Okay.  All right.

         21     Well, I understand the arguments.  And I don't know that

         22     we need to go over anything else.  Is there anything

         23     that else that you want to discuss with us?

         24               MR. KUGLER:  No.  That concludes what I have

         25     and what I know at this particular point in time.  I do
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          1     appreciate the chance to let me look at your code

          2     sections here for a few minutes.

          3               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Yeah.

          4               Jeff, do you have anything you want to ask at

          5     this point?

          6               MR. PEPPERSACK:  No.

          7               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  All right.

          8     Thank you.

          9               MR. KUGLER:  I just hope I've come up with the

         10     showing that conditions will be alleviated as is set

         11     forth, as against what is in -- and do that which I have

         12     not been able to do.  And that this insignificant

         13     consumption aspect is material to you and that you are

         14     able to find something from a mitigation standpoint as a

         15     result of my particular problems in this particular

         16     relevant time.

         17               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  And the

         18     current period of CRP enrollment expires when?

         19               MR. KUGLER:  September 30th, 2009.

         20               On October 1 I can start to put water in, and

         21     I have been given permission to drill a well on it.

         22     That is only oral, I don't have it in writing, from the

         23     Department with the Power County agent.

         24               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  You say by the

         25     Department, you are talking about someone from Power
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          1     County.

          2               MR. KUGLER:  Yes.  The Department of

          3     Agriculture that deals with my CRP contract.

          4               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.

          5               MR. KUGLER:  He has authorized me, to say you

          6     can put a well on it, but you cannot develop, further

          7     development at this time.

          8               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  So he says you can

          9     put a well on when?

         10               MR. KUGLER:  Now.  I can put one on tomorrow.

         11               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  That doesn't

         12     violate the terms of the CRP.

         13               MR. KUGLER:  He says it will not violate the

         14     terms in this last year of concern.  He said, You can't

         15     put water on it because that would be a violation.

         16               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Okay.  Very good.

         17     Thanks for your efforts and your traveling over, John,

         18     nice to see you again.

         19               MR. KUGLER:  Tell Debby thank you for

         20     arranging to have that proceeding right here.  I didn't

         21     even know it existed, and to accommodate me as far as

         22     time so I can get down and back in a day.

         23               HEARING OFFICER SPACKMAN:  Sure.  Very good.

         24     Okay.  We'll close the record.  Thanks.

         25               (End of audio tape.)
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